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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF
INDIA UNDER SECTION 143(6)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF MADHYA PRADESH METRO
RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH
2023,

The préparition ol fndncial statements of Madhya Pradesh Metro Rail
Carporation Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023 in accordance with the
financial reporting framework preseribed under the Companies Act, 2013 is the
responsibility of the management of the Company, The staruory auditor
uppointed by the Compiroller and Auditor General of India under Section 139(5)
of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements under
Section 143 of the Act based on independent audit in accordance with the
stundards on auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated
10 have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 10 July 2023,

I, on the behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have
conducted o supplementary audit of the financial statements of Madhya Pradesh
Metro Rail Corporation Limited for the vear ended 31 March 2023 under Section
1430630y of the Act. This supplementary audit has been carried out independently
witholit access o the working papers of the statutory auditors and Is limited
primarily to inguiries of the statutory auditors and Company personnel and a
selective examunation of some of the accounting records.

Based on my supplementary audit, | would like to highlight the following
significanmt maners under Section 143(6)(b) of the Act which have come 1o my
attention and which in my view are necessary for enabling a better understanding
of the financial statements and the related Audit Report.

Comments on Diselosure

. The Government of India has allocared fund of 200 crore on January
2023 and #4278 crore on March 2023 for equity contribution 1o the Company
and the GoMP matching shure of equity of T142.78 crore and 100 crore was
received in April, 2023 and May, 2023 respectively. Since the equity was
provided by GoMP before the date of upproval of Accounts (July 2023), the same
should have been disclosed in Notes of Accounts, being a material faet.

Comments on Auditors” Report

2. In Annexure A point (i) () of the Independent Auditors’ Report it is mentioned
that none ol the properties are in the name of promotor, diréctor, relative of
promoter or director and emiployee of the promotor of director. However, as per
additional Notes 1o Accounts point no, 17, the title deed of the 12 properties were

....................................
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held in the name of MP Urban Development Housing Department, GoMP as a
promotor, Thus, Independent Auditors' Reports is deficient to that extent.

For and on behalf of the

Comptroller and Auditor General of India

Place: Gwalior Principal Accountant General (Audit-1)
Dute: 2.2 [03 [2023 Madhya Pradesh
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Madhya Pradesh Metro Rail Corporation Limited
(A Joint Venture of Government of India and Government of Madhya Pradesh)

CORPORATE INFORAMATION
Board of Directors (As on AGM Date)

Designation
1. Shri Surendrakumar Bagde Chairmarn &
Additional Secretary (Housing), Nomines Director
Ministry of Housing andg Urban AfTairs, (Govt. of India)
Government of India
2. Ms. D. Thara Momiree Director
Jaint Searetarny, [Gove of India)

Minlstry of Housing and Urban Affairs,
Government of India.

i, Shri 0.H. Pande Nominee Director
Director (Elect), (Govt. of India)
Delhi Metrg Rall Corporation Lid.

(DMEC)

4. Shri Anand Singh Bisht Nominee Director
Diractor (Project), (Govt. of India)
Gljarat Metro Rail Corporation Limited.

(GMRC)

5. Shri Pankaj Tyagi Neminee Director

ED/LEA, (Covt of India)

Railway Board,
Ministry of Railways,

&, Shri Neera] Mandlol Natminee Diractor
Princlpal Secretary, {Govt. of M.P.)
Gove. of M.B,
Urban Development & Holsing Departmant

7. Shri Sukhveer Singh Maminee Director
Priricipal Secretary, (Govt. of M.P.)
Govt. of MP,
Public Warks Department.

8. Shri Nikunj Kumar Srivastava Nominee Director
Principal Secretary, (Covt. of M.P.)
GovL of M.P,
Reverue Departmanl

9. Shri D. B. Patil Mominee Director
Secretary, {Govl. of M.P)
Gout, of M.P,
Finance Pepartment.

10. Shri Manish Singh Managing Director
Managing Director, {Govt: of MiF.)
MPMRCL
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" Shri Ajay Sharma Whole-time
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DIRECTORS REPORT
Dear Shareholders,

The Company's Directors have pleasure in presenting the 8™ Annual Report on the af-
fairs of the Company together with the Audited Accounts, Auditors’ Report and com-
ments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India thereon for the financial year
ended 31" March, 2023.

1. Financial Statement Summary:

The summary of Company’s financial performance for the financial year ended 31+
March, 2023 is presented below:

Tin Lakhs
Particulars Year Ended 31st Year Ended 31st
March, 2023 March, 2022
Total Income 3681.99 1766.04
Employee Banefits Expense 1314.54 344.79
Other Expenses 1624.88 832.52
Earnings Before Interest, | 742.57 588.73
Depreciation & Tax (EBIDT)
Finance Cost 60,78 30.62
Depreciation and amortization '- 22079 129.52
experse
Exceptional Items - 113.49
Tax Expanse :. 119.28 (47.15)
Profit/(Loss) After Tax | 341.72 362.25

11 During the year, the company has received Pass Through Assistance (PTA) from
Government af India (Gol) against funding from European Investment Bank (EIB)
of ¥ 14,794 Lakh. As on 31st March, 2023, total amount of PTA from Gol stood at
# 45,522 Lakh, However, there |s no disbursement made by EIB to Gol, during the
year-ending 31st March, 2023.

1.2 As on 31st March, 2023 the paid up equity share capital of the Company was
¥ 1.20,800 Lakh with both the stakeholders viz. Government of India (Gol) and Gov-
ernment of Madhya Pradesh (GoMP) in equal proportion. The matching share for
Equity contribution amounting to % 742.78 crore & ¥ 100 crore was received in April,
2023 & May, 2023 respectively from GoMP against share application money pend-
ing allotment received from Gol as shawn in the Balance Sheet for the year ending
March, 2023.

1.3 Subordinate Debts of 7 8,682 Lakh from Gol towards Central taxes and 7 49,999.96
Lakh from GoMP towards Central taxes, State Taxes, Land, R&R and IDC were re-
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ceived during the year. Total contribution against Subordinate Debts stood at
¥ 96,062.96 Lakh as on 31" March, 2023,

2. The Status of funding for Bhopal and Indore Metro Rail Projects is as follows:

European Investment Bank (EIB)-Finance contract for Euro 400 million (250+150)
has been duly executed with EIB.

New Development Bank (NDB) - Loan agreement and Project agreement for In-
doreMetro Rail Project were under execution as on 31.3.23. However, the Loan
agreement and Project agreement have been executed on 10.07.2023 for USD
225 milllon.

Asian Development Bank (ADB) -Approval of Department of Economic Affairs
(DEA), Gol has been received and a Reconnaissance Mission was conducted
by ADB from gth to 11th Nov, 2022 and Indore project appraisal along with due
diligence is in process. A safequard mission is also being scheduled shortly.

3. State of the Company’s Affairs:
3.1 Status of Civil works for Bhopal & Indore Metro Rail Projects:

Bhopal Metro Rail Project consist of 2 lines i.e. Purple-line (remaming to
Orange- line), and Red-line (renaming to Blue line) in line with Rolling
Stock styling approved by GoMP, with total length of 27.87 km and 30 Stations,
Orange-line from Karond Square to AlIMS has 12.58 km of elevated, 2.41 km of
underground sections and 16 stations (14 elevated and 2 underground). Blue
line from Bhadbhada Square to Ratnmagiri Tiraha has 12.88 km of elevated
section and 14 Stations. One station 'Pul-Bogda’ is interchange station for both
lines. One rolling stock depot has been planned at Subhash Nagar which will
cater to both the lines.

In priority stretch of 6.226 km from Subhash Nagar to AlIMS of Orange line,
works for construction of viaduct, 8 stations, Rolling Stock Depot at Subhash
Nagar and installation of track etc are in progress. The commencement
of trajntrials between Subhash Nagar to Ranj Kamlapati stations of priority
stretch are planned in Sep 23 and commercial operations in June 2024, Tenders
for civil works for balance stretches have also been invited and entire project
has been planned for commissioning by Dec 2026.

Indore Metro Rail Project comprises of Ring Line (Yellow Line) from Bengali
Square-Vijay nagar, Bhawarsala-Airport-Palasia- Bengali Square with total
length of 31.55 km. and 30 stations.

In priority stretch of 5.29 km from Gandhi Nagar to SC3 stations, works for
construction of viaduct, 5 stations, Rolling Stock Depot at Gandhi Magar and
installation of track etc are in progress. The commencement of train trials
between in this stretch are planned in Sep 23 and commercial operations in June
2024. Further, in approx. 10.7 km stretch between SC 3 station to Radison Square,
works for viaduct and stations are in progress and this stretch |s planned for
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4.

commissioning by Dec 24. Tenders for civil works for balance elevated stretch
has also been Invited and for underground section is in process of bidding. The
entire project has been planned for commissioning by Dec 2026.

For both Bhopal and Indore Metro Rail Projects, on technical considerations,
changes In the length of Elevated, Underground and at grade (for Indore)
sections and the respective number of stations is under due process of
approval.

3.2 Status of System Works for Bhopal & Indore Metro Rail Projects:

Contracts for both Bhopal Metro Rail Project and Indore Metro Rail Project
have been awarded for major system works like Supply, Installation,
Testing & Commissioning (51TC) of Rolling Stock, Signalling, Train control &
Telecommunication, Supply, Installation, Testing & Commissioning (SITC) of
Traction & Power Supply including 3rd Rall and Receiving Sub-Station (RSS);
Supply, Installation, Testing & Commissioning (SITC) of Vertical and Horizontal
Transport System (VHTS). Tenders have been invited for major Depot Machinery
and Plants (M&P) and Supply & Installation of Automatic Fare Collection System
(AFC) on PPP basis including National Comman Mobility Card (NCMC).

Engineering and Execution work of Rolling Stock Cars (with 15 Years
Comprehensive Maintenance) - 81 Cars for Bhopal and 75 Cars for Indore,
including Signalling & Train Control and Telecommunication Systems (with 7
Years Comprehensive Maintenance) tender in progress and priority Rollings
stock cars to be delivered by September 2023 for Trail run.

Design and Manufacturing of Lifts and Escalators for priority stations is in
progress and Delivery and Installation of priority Lifts and Escalators is planned
in September 2023 for both Bhopal and Indore Metro rail Project.

Social Works of Bhopal and Indore Metro Rail Projects:

Resettlement Implementation Support Agency (RISA) has been appointed for
implementation of SIA & RAP. During the FY 2022-23, the database has been
prepared based on the field verification carried out by RISA for those Project
Affected Families (PAFs) and Project Affected Persans (PAPs) along with District
administration, Municipal Corporation and other Stakeholders. Public consultations
with the Project Affected Families were also conducted for the Rehabilitation and
Resettlement of PAFs, with special attention being given for potential vulnerable
people.

Disbursement of compensation and assistance to the eligible project affected
families is being done in accordance with the approved Entitlement Matrix,
Future Extension and Projects:

The company is involved in preparation of Comprehensive mability plan (CMP)
including Alternative Analysis Reparts (AAR) for five (5) cities of Madhya Pradesh
(Indore, Jabalpur, Gwalior, Ujjain and Bhopal),
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In this regard, following reports have been approved:

I. Inception report, Interim report, Draft CMP report and Final CMP report of
Gwalior city.

il. Inception repart, Interim report and Draft CMP repart of Indore city.
ill. Inception report and Interim report of Jabalpur city.

iv. Inception report and Interim report of Ujjain city.

v. Inception report of Bhopal city.

Also, the company is involved in Pre-feasibility study of Indore to Ujjain RRTS.

7

8.

10.

m

12.

Make in India Initiative:

All the equity funded tender packages have make in India preference clauses
included. Further, the Rolling Stock tender is as per the MoHUA guidelines under
Make in India initiative.

Dividend:

Company is yet to start {ts commercial operations and therefore, no dividend is
being recommendead.

Reserves:

During the period under review no amount has been transferred to the Reserves.
Deposits:

The Company has not invited/ accepted any deposits from the public under Section

2 (37), 73 and 74 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year ended on 31 March,
2023, There were no unclaimed or unpaid deposits as on 31" March, 2023.

Capital Structure;

Ason31*March, 2023, the Authorised share Capitalofthe Companyis 5000,00,00,000/-
(Rupees Five Thousand Crores Only) Divided in to 500,00,00,000 (Five Hundred
Crore) Equity Share of ¥ 10/- each. The paid-up share capital of the Company
is ¥ 12,08,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twelve Hundred Eight Crores only) divided into
1,20,80,00,000/- (One Twenty Crore and Eighty Lacs) equity shares of ¥ 10/- each.
The Company has no other type of securities except equity shares forming part of
paid-up capital.

Change in the Nature of Business, if any:

There was no change in the nature of business of the Company during the financial
year ended on 31 March, 2023.

Details of Significant and Material orders passed by the regulators or Courts
or Tribunals impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations in
future:

During the period, no order(s) has been passed by the requlators or courts or
tribunals impacting the going concern status and company’s operations In future.
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13. Material Changes and Commitments if any, affecting the financial position of
the Company occurred between the end of the financial year ended 31st March,
2023 and the date of the Report:

There are no material changes occurred in between the financial year ended on
31 March, 2023 and date of this report which affects the financial pesition of the
Company.
14. Names of the Companies which have become or ceased or ceased to be its
subsidiaries/ Joint venture/ Associate Companies during the year:
The Company does nat have any Subsidiaries/ Joint Ventures/ Associate Companies.
15. Annual Return under Section 92(3):
In accordance with Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Annual Return
referred to in Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 in Form No. MGT - 9 is
attached at Annexure - “A”,

16. Statutory Auditors and Auditors Report:

The Comptroller and Auditor General of India, New Delhi vide letter No./CAM/COY/
MADHYA PRADESH, MPMRC(1)/1080 dated 07/09/2022

appointed M/s A K B Jaln & Co, Chartered Accountants, (CR-0876), Bhopal-462 016 as
Statutory auditor of MPMRCL for the financial year 2022-2023 who shall continue in
office till the conclusion of the 8* Annual General Meeting.

During the year, the Auditors of the Company have not reported any fraud under
section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013.

17. Comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India and replies of
Management thereof is attached at Annexure - “B”.

18. Internal Auditors:

M/s. R. C. Baheti & Co, Chartered Accountants (Registration No. 0403034C), were
appointed as the Internal Auditors of the Company for the F.¥. 2022-23 to conduct
the Internal Audit and their report has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

19. Secretarial Auditors:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014, the Company has appointed M{s. Neelesh Gupta & Co., Practicing Company
Secretaries, (CP No.6846) to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company the
financial year 2022-23. The Secretarial Audit Report issued by the Secretarial Auditor
is placed at Annexure - “C” of this repaort.

20. Cost Auditors:

As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is neither required
to maintain cost records nor to appoint Cost Auditors.
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21. Public Relations and Social Media:

Public Relations and Social Medja activities undertaken by the Corporate
Communication/PR division during the financial year 2022-23. These activities are
dimed at enhancing the brand awareness and image building of the organization,
Following are the key points mentioned below:

(i) Mass Media Efforts:

The PR division worked on maintaining the positive image of the organization
and ongoing projects through positive stories and news in both print and
electronic media.

(ii) Social Media Presence:

The organization, MPMRCL, has established a presence on various social media
platforms such as Twitter, Facebook, Instagram, YouTube, and LinkedIn. The
social media strategy focuses on targeted communication based on people's
sentiments and the regular sharing of content related to activities. This
includes various types of content:

» Hygiene: Posts related to important days and festivals.
e Tactical: Time-specific or topic-based posts, as well as milestones.
« Strategic: Focused campaigns on specific subjects,

Additionally, MPMRCL maintains digital platforms like Blogger and Medium, where
informative blog posts related to themes/components are published every month
Lo increase mass awareness.

(iii) E-Bulletin:

The organization publishes e-bulletins containing information and progress
updatesrelated to their projects. These e-hulletins are available on the official
website of MPMRCL.

(iv) Exhibition/Stall Participation:
MPMRCL took part in exhibitions and conferences to showcase their projects
by Installed dedicated stalls at events like the Public Representatives of Urban
Bodies' conference In December, 2022 and the India International Science

Festival inJanuary,2023. These events provided opportunities for demonstrating
project models and distributing awareness materials.

MPMRCL has also participated in the International Trade Fair for Transport
Technology held at Messe Berlin from 20™ to 23 September 2022

MPMRCL's PR division is actively engaged in varjous activities to enhance the
organization's brand Iimage, maintain positive media coverage, engage with
audiences on social medija and participate in events to promote their projects
and raise awareness.

=
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22. Conservation of Energy, Technology absorption and Foreign Exchange Earning
and outgo:

The particulars as required under of the Companies Act, 2013: -
(A) Conservation of energy:

Conservation of energy is given foramast priority while planning of systems
in all projects under being implementation by MPMRCL MPMRCL has taken
a series of measures to cut down its energy consumption and rationallze its
energy procurement process by implementing several energy conservation
measures and harnessing Renewable Energy. Some key initiatives are, Solar
panels on Depot and Station buildings. planning for IGBC platinum rating
certification of Stations and Depots, provision of regenerative technology for
brakes of rolling stock, etc.

(B) Technology Absorption:

While procuring any machineries or other technological products in MPMRCL,
priority is given to use of indigenous products over imported products. The
Company follows the guidelines of *Make in India’ issued from time to time by
the

Department for Promotion of Industry and Internal Trade (DPNT), Ministry of
Commerce & Industry, Govt. of India.

(C) Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo: (¥ in Lakh)
Particulars 2022-23 2021-22

y Fareign exchange earnings [ il NIl

2. Fareign exchange outgo | 9,695.00 Il

23. Board of Directors:

() As on 31 March 2023, the Board comprised 12 directors of which 2 are Func-
tional Directors, 5 Directors including Chairman were nominated by the Gol
and 5 Director including Managing Director were nominated by CoMP. The
Nominee Directors and whole-time Functional Director are senior officers, who
have wide range of experience in the functioning of Government and possess
top order administrative skills, financial and technical expertise.
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year.

DIN

Date of Ap-

pointment/

Cessation

(i) Particular of Change in Directors and Key Managerial Personnel during the

Nature of
change

Shri Manoj Govil
Principal Secretary,
Govt, of M.P,,
Finance Department.

07651991

22/04/2022

Cessation

Shri D.B. Patil
Secretary Finance,
GoMP.

Deoon046

22/04/2022

Appointment

Ms. Niti Kothari
Director (Finance),
MPMRICL

09608369

20/05/2022

Appointment as
(Whole-Time
Director)

Shri B. K. Gupta
ED/Project Monitoring
(SAG/IRSE)

Railway Board,
Ministry of Railways.

08121844

24/05/2022

Cessation

shri Pankaj Tyagi
ED/L&A,

Railway Board,
Ministry of Railways.

09622386

24/05/2022

Appointment

Ms. Chhavi Bhardwaj
Managing Director,
MPMRCL

06499360

13/07/2022

Cessation

Shri Nikunj Kumar
Srivastava

Commissioner,

Urban Administration and
Development,

and Managing Director.

02008508

13/07/2022

Appointment
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DIN Date of Ap- Nature of
pointment/ change
Cessation
8. Shri Nikunj] Kumar
Srivastava
Principal Secretary,
Govt. of M.B. 02008508 | 17/11/2022 Cessation

Department of Science
andTechnology and
‘Managing Director.

9. Shri Manish Singh
Managing Director, 05277748 12/11/2022 Appointment

MPMRCL.

10. Shri Neeraj Mandloi
Principal Secretary,

Govt. of M.P,,

_F‘ublic Works Department.

1. Shri Sukhveer Singh
Principal Secretary,

Govt. of M.P.,
Public Works Department.

12. Shri Manish Singh
Principal Secretary,
Govt. of M.B., 02947579 11/11/2022 Cessation
Urban Development &
Housing Department.

13. Shri Neeraj Mandloi
Principal Secretary,
Govt. of M.P,,

Urban Development &
Housing Department.

02037213 07/M/2022 Cessation

02390931 07/11/2022 Appointmeant

02037213 11/11/2022 Appointment




Madhya Pradesh Metro Rall Corporation Limited Annuitl Repart 2022-2023

(iii) Details of directors and Key managerial personnel as on the closure of
financial year

Sr.  Detalls of Directors Designation

No.

Shri Surendrakumar Bagde 02305641 Chairman and
Additional Secretary (H). Director
Ministry of Housing and Urban
Affairs,

Government of India.

Ms. D. Thara 01911714 Director
Joint Secretary,

Ministry of Housing and Urban
Affairs,

Government of India.

Shri Sanjay Mishra 08102047 Director
3, Diractor (Project),

Uttar Pradesh Metro Rail
CorporationLtd. (UPMRCL)

Shri 0.H. Pande 08397090 Director
4, Director (Elect.),

Delhi Metro Rail Corporation Ltd.
(DMRC).

Shri Pankaj Tyagi 09622386 Director
5. ED/LEA,
Rallway Board, Ministry of Railways.

Shri Neeraj Mandloi 02037213 Director
Principal Secretary,

Govt. of M.P.,

Urban Development & Housing
Department.

Shri Manish Rastogi 02579544 Director
T Principal Secretary,
Govt. of M.P.,
Revenue Department.

Shri Sukhveer Singh 02350931 Director
B. Principal Secretary,

Govt. of M.P.,

Public Waorks Department.
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Shri D. B. Patil
Secretary,

Govt. of M.P,,
Finance Department.

06999046

Director

10.

Shri Manish Singh
Managing Director,
MPMRCL.

05277748

Managing Director

1.

Shri Ajay Sharma
Director (Project),
MPMRCL.
(Whole-Time Director,
MPMRCL)

08644408

Whole-time Director

12.

Ms. Niti Kothari

Director (Finance),

MPMRCL.

(Whole-Time Director, MPMRCL)

09608369

Whole-timeDirector

13

Shri Sandeep Jain
MPMRCL

M. No. F7847

Company Secretary

(iif) Declaration by Independent Director(s) and re- appointment, if any:

The Company Is a Joint-Venture Company, and it Is exempted under the Companies
Act, 2013 from appointment of Independent Directors on the Board of the Company.

(iv) Number of meetings of the Board:

The Board of Directars met five (5) times during the financial year from 1 April,
2022 to 31* March, 2023 The dates on which the meetings were held are: 22" April,
2022, 06" July, 2022, 22" September, 2022, 27" December, 2022 and 77" March, 2023,
during the period under review.
The Annual Financial Statements for F.Y. 2022-23 was approved in Board Meeting
held on 3@ July, 2023.

24. Committees of the Board of Directors

Pursuant to the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors has
constituted the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and
Investment Committee. Details of the Committees are as follows:
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Membets as on

Members as on

Number of

Committee 31.03.2023 date of Report Pesignation Meeting
R held
Shri D.B. Patil Shri D.B. Patil Chairman
Secratary, Govt. of M.P. |Secretary, Govt, of
Finance Department M.P,, Finance
Department
Shri 0.H. Pande Shri 0.H. Pande Member 1 (one)
. Director (Elect.), Delhi |Director (Elect.), meetingon
c A“",ﬁ Metro Rail Corporation |Delhl Metro Rall 15.06.2022
OMMILIEE || td. (DMRC), Nominee |Carporation Ltd,
of Gol (DMRC), Nominee
of Col
Shri Ajay Sharma shri Ajay Sharma Member
Director (Project), Director (Project),
MPMRCL MPMRCL
Shri Neeraj Mandloi | Shri Neeraj Mandloi
Nomination | principal Secretary, Principal Secretary, | .
and : Govt. of MP., Urban Govt. of M.E., Urban Rirmar)
Remuneration | peyelopment and Development and
Committee | pousing Department  |Housing Department
Shri O.H. Pande Shri O.H. Pande 2 (two)
Director (Elect.), Director (Elect.), P meeting or
Delhi Metro Rail pelhi Metro Rail 13.06.2022
Corporation L. Corporation Ltd. and
(DMRQ), (DMRC), 16.01.2023
Nominee of Col Noeminee of Gol
Shri Manish Singh Shri Manish Singh Member
Managing Director, Managing Director,
MPMRCL MPMRCL
Shri Manish Singh Shri Manish Singh
Managing Director, Managing Director, Chairman
MPMRCL MPMRCL
Investment | shri Ajay Sharma Shri Ajay Sharma 1 (one)
Committee | pacior (project), Director (Project), Member | eetingon
MPMRCL MPMRCL 99.08.2022
Ms. Niti Kothari Ms. Niti Kothari
Director (Finance), Director (Finance). Member

MPMRCL

MPMRCL
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25. Shareholders’ Grievance Committee:

MPMRCL is a Government Company, presently, 100% of the total paid-up share
capital is held by Gol and GoMP In 50:50 ratio. The Shareholders are 10 in numbers
which is done so as to comply with the minimum number of shareholders under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence the Company does not foresee any
reason for grievance and has not constituted Shareholders’ Grievance Committee.

26. Particulars of Employees:

The provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made there
under, related to Managerial Remuneration, are not applicable to the Company.
Therefore, no disclosure is required to be made.

27. Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments under Section 186:
During the year under Report, the Company has not,
« Given any loan to any person ar other body corporate:

« Given any guarantee or provided security in connection with any loan to any
otherbody corporate or person; and

« Acquired by way of subscription, purchase or otherwise, the securities of any
otherbody corporate, as prescribed under Section 186 of the Companies Act,
2013,

28. Related Party Transactions:

During the year under review, the Company has not entered into any contracts or
arrangements with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 of
the Companies Act 2013,

29. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR):

Pursuant to Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013, the CSR provisions are applicable
to MPMRCL but the average net profits during the three immediately preceding
financial years is negative, the company is not required to spend any amount
mandatorily on CSR.

30. Risk Management:

The Projects of the Company are under construction stage and the General
Consultant has been appointed for Bhopal and Indore Metro Rail Projects. The
General Consultant perceives and evaluates risk on a continuous basis and submits
its abservation regularly, based on which steps for mitigation of risks are taken by
company.

31. Human Resources Management:

As on 31 March, 2023, the employees' strength of the Company is 89. MPMRCL has
always believed that its employees are its biggest assets and driven for the growth
of the Company. The Company has been regularly taking up initiatives for well
being of employees by implementing various policies beneficial to staff. Industrial
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retations were cordial and the company’s Human Resources is commensurate with
the size, nature and operation of the Company.

32. Official Language:

MPMRCL continue its efforts towards the promotion of the use of Hindi in official
waork.

33. Company’s Website:

The Company's Website is www.mpmetrorail.com. All major information pertaining
to the Company, including project, tenders, contracts, jobs, recrujtment process
and results, etc. are being posted on the website from time to time.

34. Right to information:

MPMRCL has implemented the provision of the Right to Information Act 2005,
there is 01 PIOs and 01 First Appellate Authority looking after applications related
to various department of the organization. 15 No. of RTI application and 3 No. of
Appeal were received and which have been disposed.

35. Sexual Harassment at Workplace:

MPMRCL is committed towards Empowerment of women employees and providing
a safe working environment to them. Iinternal Complaint Committees are in place
for executive and non-executive women employees, with an external member
having adequate knowledge and experience in the field of women welfare. During
the year no case of Sexual Harassment of workman/ employee at workplace was
reported.

36. Proceeding under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016:

During the year, no application was made and no proceeding is pending under the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Cade, 2016 at the end of the financial year.

37. Directors’ Responsibility Statement:

As per the Directors’ Responsibility Statement referred to in clause (c) of sub-
section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, it is stated that:

a) inthe preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards
had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material
departures;

b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them
consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent so as to give a true and fair view af the state of affairs of the company
at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for
that period;

¢} The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the

Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.
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d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

€)

The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and
operating effectively.

38. Acknowledgements:

The Board place on record their gratitude for the invaluable guidance, continued
co-operation and support extended by various Ministries, Departments and
agencies of Govt. of India, Govt. of Madhya Pradesh.

The Board is also thankful to funding agencies for agreeing financial assistance
for Bhopal and Indare Metro Rail Projects.

The Board also acknowledges and extends sincere thanks to the Comptroller
and Auditor General of India, Secretarial Auditors, Statutory Auditors and
Internal Auditors, Bankers of the Company, various national and international
contractors, consultants, technical experts and suppliers for their continued
support and co- operation.

The Board wishes ta place on recard their deep sense of appreciation for the
sincereefforts and hard works put in by all the employees of the Company and
look forward to their services with zeal and dedication in the years ahead to
enable the Company to scale greater heights.

By the order of the Board
For Madhya Pradesh Metro Rail Corporation Ltd.

Sd/- sd/- sd/-
Place: Bhopal (sandeep Jain) (Niti Kothari) (Manish Singh)
Date: 26.09.2023 Company Secretary Director (Finance) Managing Director
FCS:7847 & CFO DIN: 05277748
DIN: 09608369
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Annexure-‘A’

Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on the financial year ended on 31.03.2023

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

l. |REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

1 CIN U75100MP201550GC024434

2 | Registration Date D™ July, 2015

3 | Name of the Company Madhya Pradesh Metro Rail Corporation

| Limited

4 | Category/Sub-Category of Metro Railway Transport Services
Company

& | Address of the 2™ Floor, Smart City Development Corporation
Registered officeand Office Building, Kalibadi Road, BHEL, Sactor A,
contact details Berkheda, Bhopal - 462022

6 | Whether listed company No

7 | Name, Address and Contact N.A
detalls
of Registrar and Transfer
Agent, if any

Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the
Company shall bestated:

Name and Description of NIC Code of the % to total turnover of

main products/ services Product/ service the
Company

1 ‘ Urban & Sub-Urban Metro 29641712 ‘ 100
| Railway Transport Services

I1l. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Holding/
CIN  subsidiary/
Associate

] Wil | Nil | Nil Nil Nil

Name of the % of shares Applicable

held Section

Company
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IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total
Equity)
I) Category-wise Shareholding

Category of  No. of Shares held at the beginning of No. of Shares held at the end of the year *

Shareholders the year (As on 01-April, 2022) {As on 31-March,2023) change
in Share
holding
during
the year

bemat Physical Total %of Demat Physlcal Tkl % of
Total Total
Shares Shares
A
Promoter(s)
(1) Indian
a) Individus
1P HUF
S0A000000 [ 404000000 50% - K0A000000 | &04000000 50%:
b) central
Gael!
President
ot India - A0ADD0000 | 604000000 50% &0AD0A000 | 404000000 50%:
C) Stae
Govt, (5]
d}  Bodies
Com.
£) Ranks/Fl
f) Any Othear
= 120800000 | 20800000 100% - 120800000 i TZO5000000 | 100%
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Category of
Shareholders

'z} Fareign

a) MNR1s -
Individuils

by Othar
Irsdivlplus s

i) Badles Corp,
iy Baniks/Fl

e) Any Other
Sub-total{A)
(2):- Total
sharzholding
of Promotar
()= (8)
(1)+(A)(2)

No. of Shares held at the beginning of

No. of Shares held at the end of the year L

the year (As on 01-April, 2022) (As on 31-March,2023) change
in Share
holding
during
the year
Demat Physical Total % of Physical Total 9% of
Total Total
Shares Shares
_F'J-'-'J-'_ﬂ-r
__'_,__,-o—"
o -'--'_/_FF'/""—’
_,_,--""_'—-'
—
|} _'_,__,-o—""-'-'-r'_
-Ff-fl_'_-/f';
_:—‘-'-FF'-FF
o |
1208000000 (1208000000 100%: 1208000000 | 1208000000 | 100% -

B

Public
Shareholding
1. Institutions
a) Mutual
Funds

by Banlks/Fl

¢) Cantral
Got

d} state Govt
(s

¢) Venture
CapitalFunds
£} |nsurance
Companies
g) Flis

h) Foreign
Vanlure
Capital Funds
1) others
Sub-total

((B){1):-
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Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning of the No. of Shares held at the end of the year
Shareholders year (As on 01-April, 2022) (As on 31-March,2023)

Demat Physical Total “%of Demal Physical Total
Total
Shares

iz.Hun- 4
linstitutions /
| v
g) Godies /
|Corporates

i.'“.l Indian e
il) Overseas 4
(b} indiyiduals
i) Individual /-
shareholders
halding &
[nominal share
capitial up to

R=.1 Takh A
iifndividual
shareholders -
(holding
[naminal

sharecapital v,
in axcess of
Ris1lakh ~
(€] Otbyers 4
Sub-total(B) ra

(2):- g
Total Public g
Sharsholding /
[(B)=(B){1)+E) v

(&) /

. Shares neld| -

by  Custodian)

far (GDHS C'r!

L0HS |

Grand Total 1208000000 1208000000 100 - 1208000000 | 1208000000 [ 100
[(As8ac)

— 126

=+
|
r



Madhya Pradesh Metro Rall Corporation Limited

Annual Report 2022-2023

ii) Shareholding of Promoters

5. Shareholder's Shareholding at the beginning of the Shareholding at the end of the year

Mo. Mame year

% of Shares
Pledged/

Mo.of % of total

Shares Shares of

encumbered
to

the

Company total shares

|shares held 1208000000 100
{by Presidentof
[nchia, Governor
:nf Maihya
[Pradesh and 10
Inominees af
{Gat and

|Gomp

Total 1Z0B000000( 100% -

No. of
Shares

1208000000

1208000000

% of total % of Shares
Pledged/
encumberad

Shares of
the

to total
shares

Company

160

100% | -

% change
in
share-
holding
during the
year

127
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(iif) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding please specify, if there is no change)

Gonernment of
PAxdhya Pradest.

Shareholding at the
beginning af the year

Mo. of
sharps

% of total shares of

the company

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

Mo. of
shares

% of total shares

of

the company

At the beginning of

the year

04000000

5054

A04030000

i

Date wise Increasef
|Ul:|'re.ur: i Promoters
Sharehoiding during
{the year spacifying

tha reavpns for
increase) docreaze {e.g.
allotment ffransfer/
bonus/ sweat equity,
|E1:v.'..‘j

At the end of the
year

504000000

50%

404000000

50%

President of india

.At the beginning of
{the year

604000000

50%

604000000

50%

|L'Ia:e wise Increass/
|D:—:--:re.‘15|=.' In Bromuoters
Shareholding during
thie year spedifying
tha reasans for
increase/decredse g,
allotment/ transler/
bonus;/

SWeaEl eguity Bt

At the end of the year

604000000

50%%

604000000

Grand
Total

TZ08000000

1208000000

100%

- 128
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(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters
and Holders of GDRs and ADRs): NIL

For Each of the Top 10
Sharsholders

1 |[AL the beginning of the year

2 |Date'wlze |nereass) Decreada |n
Sharghnlding diring the
year specifying the reasons for

translar) bonus/saeat EqUity etc.)

increass) decrease (2. allotment/|

[T

At the end of the year {or on tha
date of separation, if
separated during the yeal)

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

Mo. of % of total shares
shares af
the company

% of total
shares of
the company

Na. of
shares

MOT APPLICABLE

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:-

For Each of the
Directors and KMP

1 At the beginning of tha year

2 trate wise |ngrease) Dagrgase
In Shareholding during the

vear sperifying the reasons for
INcrease fdecrease

(e.g. allotmant/ transfer/
bonus/ sweat aguity stc)

At the end of the year

o |

Shareholding at the
beginning of theyear

Cumutative Shareholding
during the year

No. of
shares

9 of total shares of
the company

Mo.of " of total shares
shares of

the company

Sharas held by President of India, Goveinar of Madhya Pradesh

and 10 Neaminges of ol and GaMP

129 —
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V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstandina/accrued but not due
for payment:

(Amount in Lakhs)

Secured Loans Unsecured Depasits Total

excluding Loans Indebtedness
deposits

Indebtedness at the beginning
of the financialyear
f} Principal Ambunt - 68109.00 - £8109.00

H) Interest due but not pald

Hi) Interest accrued but fot
die

Total (I+i+if) Ml £4109.00 Nil EaN0E.00

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year

{1 Addition 1a41594 F1475.94

(I} Reduction - - .

Net Change Mil 7347585 Mil T1475.95

Indebtedness at the end of the fimancial year

Iy Principal Amount Wil | 1a1spane | NiE | 14158494

il) Interest due but not paid -

i) Interest acorued but not die

Total (l+fi+ii) il 14158456 | Nil 141584.96
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VI. REMUMERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONMNEL
A Remuneration to Managing Director. Whole-time Directors and/or Manager
{Amount in Rs))

Mame Ms. Chivavi Bhardwa] Shr Ajay Sharma Smid. Niti Kothar

Designation Managing Director - Director Director
(Tl 13* July 2022) (Project) {Financs)
and CFO
DN 06499360 | faa44408 05608369
1. |Gross salary 6,990,047 44,181,028 35,412,505 87,02,580
(a)Salary as per provisions 61,9341
contained in sectionT7(1) of 4481078 33.40,BR5 B4.41,254
the Income-tax Act, 1961
Ib)Value of pergquisites w/(s17(2) 74 706 181,620 253064
Income-tax Act, 1567 -

{c} Profits in lieu of salary under
section 17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961 - -

2, [Stock Option - - -

Sweat Equity - -

Commission
= as % of profit
-others, specify

5. |Others, please specify

Medical Reimbursement - 30,5080 - 10,590
Helper Reimbursement . 108000 493,484 232,674
PF - Employers Contribution 12% . - 3,003,733 303,743
NPS- Employars Contribution T9.I06 . 45,405 L2511
Gratuity and pension . &,14,011 127450 741,041
Contribution
Composite Transfer Grant . 174,080 RRER:T 2.B7 968
GSLI-Employers . . uon 900
Contribution
Leave salary contribution . 2,96, 288 244 544 580932
6 |Total (A) 778,753 57,04,017 4501609 10,954, 379
Celling as per the Act M.A.
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B. Remuneration to other dirgctors: Nil

Particulars of Remuneration MName of Directors Totzl Amount

L. Indepandent Directars: -
Fee for attending board committes meatings
(i) Commission
(1} Others, please specify

Total(l)

) Other Mon-Executive Directors:
Fes for attending board committes meetings
{1} Commission

(i} Othars, please specify

Totall2)

Total(Bi=(1+2)

Total Managerial Remuneration

C. REMUMERATION TO KEY MAMAGERIAL PERSOMMEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD
{Amount in Hs.}

Particulars of Remunaration Koy Managerial Personnal

Shri Sandeep Jain

Company Secratary

L Grozs salary | IB22356 1822156

Lajsalary @s per provisions contained in section1 711} LEFSER ] FF24196
of the Incometax Act, 1961

(hivalue of perouisitss w's 1703) GRG0 88160

c)Profite in lied of salary under
(sectioniyid) Income-tax Act, 195]
1 |stock Option
= i Y| M
3. _S'.wri-u Ff_gmr_.:._l
4 Commishinn
35 % of profit

~others, specify

5 Others. please specify

PF — Emploviers Contribution | 157431 L5741 |
1
HPS- Employers Contrbuton 24540 24,540
& Total (C) 20.04.327 2004127
_",_l
—{ 132 |
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VIl. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Section of the Brief
Companies Description
Act

A, COMPANY

Details of Penalty/

Compounding Fees

Authority [RD/
NCLT/ COURT]

Appeal
made, if
any (give
details)

Funishment/

Imposed.

Penaity

Punishment

Companding

MNONE

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty

Punishrment

Compounding

NONE

C.OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFALULT

Penalny

Pumnishrrent

Compaunding

Sd/-
Place: Bhopal (Sandeep Jain)
Date: 26.09.2023 Company Secretary
FCS:7847

MOMNE

By the arder of the Board
For Madhya Pradesh Metro Rail Corporation Ltd.

sd/- sd/-
(Niti Kothari) (Manish Singh)
Director (Finance) & CFO  Managing Director
DIN: 096083569 DIN: 05277748
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Annexure-‘B’

COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER
SECTION 143 (6) (b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OF MADHYA PRADESH METRO RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED, BHOPAL FOR THE YEAR

ENDED ON 31" MARCH 2023

The preparation of financial statements of Madhya Pradesh Metro Rajl Corporation
Limited for the year ended on 31 March 2023 in accordance with the financial reporting
framework prescribed under the Comparnies Act, 2013 is the responsibility of the
management of the Company. The statutory auditors appointed by the Comptroller and
Auditor General of India under section 139 (5) of the Act is responsible for expressing
opinion on the financial statements under section 143 of the Act based on independent
audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under Section 143 (10)
of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 10"
July 2023

|, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a
supplementary audit of the financial statements of Madhya Pradesh Metro Rall
Corporation Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023 under section 143(6)(a) of the
Act. This supplementary audit has been carried out independently without access to
the working papers of the statutory auditors and is limited primarily to inquiries of the
statutory auditors and Company personnel and a selective examination of some of the
accounting records.

Based on my supptementary audit, | would like to highlight the following significant
matters under Section 143(6)(b) of the Act which have come to my attention and
which, in my view, are necessary for enabling a better understanding of the financial
statements and the related Audit Report.

Comment on Disclosure

1. The Government of India has allocated fund of 200 crore on January 2023 and £42.78
crore an March 2023 for equity contribution to the Company and the GoMP matching
share of equity of ¥ 142.78 crore and ¥ 100 crore was received in April, 2023 & May, 2023
respectively. Since the equity was provided by GoMP before the date of approval of
Accounts (July 2023), the same should have been disclosed in Notes of Accounts, being
a material fact.

Reply of Management

As per the order for allocation of fund, it is mentioned that the fund is sanctioned for
execution of MP Metro rail project for FY 2023-24,

The release of equity funds is a regular feature whereby fund are allotted by the Gol
and GoMP through their annual budgets. Amounts received during the year is depicted
in the balance sheet in the year of its receipt. As the said transactions are of routine
nature w.r.t the metro industry hence, they do not have an adverse impact on the

sy
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decisions of the user / reader of financial statements. Thus, the same has not be
separately disclosed.

However, the disclosure in this regard has been made in the Directors report.
Comments on Auditors’ Report

2. In Annexure A point (i) (c) of the Independent Auditors’ Report it is mentioned that
none of the properties are in the name of promotor, director, relative of promoter or
director and employee of the promotor of director. However, as per additional Notes
to Accounts paint no. 17, the title deed of the 12 properties were held in the name of
MP Urban Development Housing Development, GoMP as a promotor, Thus, Independent
Auditors' Reports is deficient to that extent.

Reply of Management

As per Statutory Auditor this happened due to typographical error. Further, the
management has disclosed the information as per the requirement of amendiments in
Schedule |1l to the Companies Act, 2013 in Note no. 17 of additional notes to accounts, it
is clearly reported that immovable properties are held in the name of promoter, There
is no impact on true and fare view on Financial Statement as such.

However, the Statutory Auditor has issued a clarification letter and has also assured to
be more cautious while drafting Audit Report.

By the order of the Board
For Madhya Pradesh Metro Rail Corporation Ltd.

Sd/- Sdj- sd/-
Place: Bhopal (sandeep Jain) (Niti Kothari) (manish Singh)
Date: 26.09.2023 Company Secretary Director (Finance) & Managing Director
FCS:7847 CFO DIN: 05277748

DIN: 09608369
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Annexure-‘C’

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH, 2023
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel)
Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

MADHYA PRADESH METRO RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED

2nd Floor, Smart City Development Cor. Ltd. office Building,
Kalibadi Road, BHEL, Sector A, Berkheda

Bhopal MP 452022 IN

CIN: U75100MP20155GC034434

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Madhya Pradesh Metro
Rail Corporation Limited (hereinafter called ‘the company'’). The Secretarial Audit was
condutted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters of Compliances
of the various provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable laws. Our
responsibility to conduct the audit of the Compliances made during the year upon
test check basis. We have adopted such methods and procedure and based on our
verification of the Company books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by
the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives and considering the
relaxations granted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs during the conduct of secretarial
audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period
covering the financial year ended an 31st March, 2023 has complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes
and compliance-rmechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the
reporting made hereinafter,

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31# March, 2023
according to the provisions of:

(I} The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;
(i) The Metro Railways (Construction of works) Act,1978 and Rules thereof;
(iil) The Metro Railways (Operation and Maintenance) Act, 2002 and Rules thereof; and

l.'F
— 136
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(iv) The Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company

During the peried under review and as per the explanations and representations made
by the management and subject to clarifications given to us, the Company has generally
complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Requlations, Standards, Guidelines, etc.
mentioned above.

We further report that:

Based on our verification of books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has. during the
audit period covering the financial year ended on 31% March, 2023 complied with the
statutory provisions listed hereunder;

i. Maintenance of various statutory registers and documents and making necessary
entries therein;

il. Forms, returns, documents and resolutions required to be filed with the Registrar
of Companies;

jil. Service of documents by the Company on its Members, Auditors and the Registrar
of Companies;

iv. Notice of Board and various Committee meetings of Directors;
v.  Meetings of Directors and all the Committees of Directors;
vi. Notice and convening of 7" Annual General Meeting held on 22™ September, 2022;

vil. Minutes of the proceedings of the Board Meetings, Committee and Members
Meeatings;

viii. Approvals of the Board of Directors, Committee of Directors, Members and
Government Authorities, wherever required;

ix. Constitution of the Board of Directors, Committees of Directors and appointment
and reappointment of Directors;

X Payment of remuneration to Directors and Managing Director and Key Managerial
Persannel;

xl. Appointment and remuneration of Statutory Auditors, Secretarial Auditors and
Internal Auditors;

xil. Transfer of Company’s shares, issue and allotment shares;

Xiji. Conftracts, registered office and publication of name of the Company,;

xiv, Report of the Board of Directors;

xv. Investment of Company's funds;

xvi. Generally, all other applicable provisions of the Act and the Rules there under;

=

'-"-'l"-"-"l"-"-'-‘"'-"-'u-""""-'.l".-"':':'."i'E."i-":.L'I..:";H:Lr'I..:'Hlll"Hl'"|""|
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xvii.The Company has, in our opinion, proper Board-processes and compliance
mechanism and has complied with the applicable statutery provisions, Act(s),
rules, requlations, guidelines, applicable secretarial standards, etc.,, mentioned
above and as stipulated under the Memerandum and Articles of Association the
Company.

We further report that:

l. The Directors have complied with the requirements as to disclosure of interests
and concerns in contracts and arrangements, shareholdings and directorships in
other Companies and interest in other entitles;

il. The Company has obtained all necessary approvals under various provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 wherever necessary;

ill. There was no prosecution initiated against or show cause notice receivad by the
Company during the year under review under the Companies Act, 2013 and rules,
regulations and guidelines thereunder.

iv. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during
the period under review were carried out in compliance the orders of Government
of India, Ministry of Housing and Urban Affairs (MoHUA) and Urban Development
& Housing Department, Government of Madhya Pradesh in consonance of the
Companies Act..

We further report that during the year:

The status of the Company remains as a Government Company with 50:50 Joint Venture
of Government of Madhya Pradesh and Government of India. Further, we are of the
view that the Company is regular in complying with the applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Metro Railways (Construction of Warks) Act, 1978 and the
Metro Railways (Operation and Maintenance) Act, 2002 (Being specific acts governing
the Company).

i.  The compliance to that effect have been made, this fact has been examined from
the perusal of various records maintained by the Company.

li. During the period under review, the Board of Directors of the Company was duly
constituted and the appointment and cessation of Directors has been made in
accordancewiththe provisionsofthe Companies Act,2013and respective Government
Orders. The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements.

We further report that :

During the audit period of the company, there were no instances of:
{i) Public issue of shares/debentures/sweet equity.

(i) Redemption/buy-back of securities.

(iif) Merger/amalgamation/reconstruction etc.

(iv) Foreign technical collaboration.
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We further report that :
During the Audit period of the company, there were instances of;
1. Holding of Annual General Meeting for the financial year ended 37 March, 2022

During the year company has hold Annual General Meeting for the financial year
ended 31" March, 2022 on 22" Day of September, 2022 and members adopted the
Audited financial statements together with the Director Report for the year ended
st March, 2022;

For Neelesh Gupta & Co.,
Date : 14/08/2023 Company Secretaries

5d/-
CS. Neelesh Gupta
Proprietor
C.P. No.6B4s

UDIN : FO06381E000802242 Mem No. :FCS 6381
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To,

The Members,

MADHYA PRADESH METRO RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED

2nd Floor, Smart City Development Cor. Ltd. office Building,
Kalibadi Road, BHEL, Sector A, Berkheda

Bhopal MP 462022 IN

Our secretarial Audit Repart for the financial year ended 31" March, 2023 of even date
is to be read along with this letter,

Management’s Responsibility

1. It is the responsibility of the management of the company to maintain Secretarial
records, devise proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and regulations and to ensure that the systems are adequate and
operate effectively.

Auditor's Responsibility

2. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, standards
and procedures followed by the company with respect to secretarial compliances.

3. We believe that audit evidence and information obtained from the company's
management is adequate and appropriate for us to provide a basis for our opinion.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of taws, rules and requlations and happening of events etc.

Disclaimer

5. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of
the company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

6. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and
books of accounts of the Company.

For Neelesh Gupta & Co,,
Date : 14/08/2023 Company Secretaries

Sdf-
CS. Neelesh Gupta
Prapristor
C.P. No.684s
Mem No. : FCS 6381
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O

COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF
INDIA UNDER SECTION 143(6)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF MADHYA PRADESH METRO
RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH
2023.

Ihe preparation of financial statements of Madhya Pradesh Metro Rail
Corporation Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023 in accordance with the
financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 is the
responsibility of the management of the Company. The statutery auditor
uppointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of Indin under Section 139(3)
of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements under
Section 143 of the Act based on independent audit in accordance with the
standards on auditing preseribed under Section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated
1o hive been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 10 July 2023.

I, on the behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have
conducted a supplementary audit of the financial statements of Madhya Pradesh
Metro Rail Corporation Limited for the vear ended 31 March 2023 under Section
143(6)(a) of the Act. This supplementary audit has been carried out independently
without pecess to the working papers of the statutory auditors and is limited
primarily to inguiries of the stalutory anditors and Coimpany personnel and a
selective examination of some ol the accounting records.

Hased on my supplementary audit, | would like to highlight the following
significant matters under Section 143(6)(b) of the Act which have come 1o my
attention wnd which in my view are necessary for enabling u better understanding
of the financial statements and the related Audit Report.

Comments on Disclosure

1. The Government of India has allocated fund of 2200 erore on January
2023 and 342.78 crore .on March 2023 for equity contribution to the Company
und the GoMP matching share of equity of 2142.78 crore and 100 ¢crore was
teceived in April, 2023 and May, 2023 respectively. Since the equity wus
provided by GoMP before the date of approval of Accounts (July 2023}, the same
should have been disclosed in Notwes of Accounts, being a material fact.

Comments on Auditors’ Report

2. In Annexure A point (i) (¢) of the Independent Auditors’ Report it is mentioned
that none of the properties are in the name of promotor. director, relative of
promoter or direetor and employee of the promotor of directar. However, as per
additional Notes to Accounts point no. 17, the title deed of the 12 properties were
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held in the name of MP Urban Development Housing Department, GoMP as a
promotor. Thus, Independent Auditors' Reports is deficient to that extent.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India

-"‘-,.F'_\
(ﬁﬁ |

Place: Gwalior Principal Accountant General (Audit-I)
Dutes .'1?.'05 |1°25 Madhya Pradesh
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A K B JAIN & Co. AB HOUSE
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS E-2/316, Arera Colony, Bhopal -462016
% :0755-2420163, 2420319

1o,

The Director (Finance),

M.P. Metro Rail Corporation Ltd.,
Bhopal.

Subject: Clarification regarding Peint No. (i)(c) of Annexure-A to the independent
auditor’s report.
Madam,

With reference to above mentioned subject, in respect of our audit report issued for
financial year 2022-23, this is to bring to your notice that due to typographical error
in Point No. (i) (c) of Annexure - A to the independent auditor’s report the fact that
“further title of these properties are in the name of praomoter™. It has been typed as
“further title of none of these properties are in the name of promaoter, director, relative
of promoter or director and employee of the promoter of the director”.

However, it should be noted that a reference is also made by us towards Note No. 17 of
additional Notes to Accounts for further details wherein such fact that the title is held
in the name of promoter is disclosed correctly.

Therefore, in Point No. (I)(c) of Annexure - A to the independent auditor's repart the
waord "further title of none of these properties are in the name of promoter, director,
relative of pramoter or directar and employee of the promoter of the directar” should
be read as “further title of these properties are In the name of promoter”.

Further, we assure to be more cautious while drafting our audit report.
Kindly take the note of above and do the needful.

For A K B JAIN & CO.
Chartered Accountants
FRN-003904C

(sdf)

Pawan Dharamdasani
(Partner)

M. No.430739

Place: Bhopal

Date: 14.08.2023
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A K B JAIN & Co. AB HOUSE
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS E-2/316, Arera Colony, Bhopal -462016
= :0755-2420163, 2420319

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To

Members of

Madhya Pradesh Metro Rail Corporation Limited,
Bhopal

Report on the audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of MADHYA PRADESH
METRO RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED, BHOPAL (“the Company™), which comprise the
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (Including other
comprehensive income), the Statement of Changesin Equityand the Cash Elow Statement
for the year ended on that date, and notes to the financial statements, including a

summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein
after referred to as the “financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act™) in the manner so required and give a
true and fair viewin conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended, (“Ind AS"™) and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023 and its Profit including
other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing ("SA"s) as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 as
amended (“the Act"™). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the "Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under
the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical respansibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Cade of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our apinion on the financial statements.
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Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to the following Notes to the accompanying Financial Statements:-

1. Note No. 24 regarding “Changes In Accounting Pollcy, Changes in Accounting
Estimate and Error” wherein the company has disclosed the reasons for
restatement of Financial Statements of Previous year, either due to change
ar due to adoption of new accounting policies by the company so as ensure
compliance of Ind. AS.

2. 'Note No. 13 regarding “Provisions. Contingent Liabilities & Contingent
Assets” wherein the company has disclosed the ongoing dispute with
M/s Rohit Associates pending before Hon'ble MSEFC, Mumbal in respect of
DPR consultancy fee for Bhopal & Indore Metro Rall Projects, the financial
impact of which cannot be ascertained till the disposal of the dispute.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of all the matters mentioned above.
Other information

The Company’s Board of Directors Is respansible for preparation of the other infarmation.
The other infarmation comprises the information included in the Management,

Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including annexure to Board’s Report, Business
Responsibility Report, Carporate Covernance and Shareholder’s Information, but does
not include the Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other infarmation Is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the waork
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
infarmation; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with governance for the
Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in sub section
(5) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act™) with respect to the preparation
of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes
in equity of the Company in accordance with the Accounting Principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under section
133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
as amended, This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
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and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are

reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, ar has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reparting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the audit of financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statementsas a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance,but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in theaggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of thesefinancial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» ldentify and assessthe risks ef material misstatement afthe financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud s higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
averride of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal financial contral relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

Lol
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» Conclude onthe appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to moedify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentatian.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
the mall relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that,
individually or in aggregate,makes it probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the Financial Statements may be influenced, We
consider quantitative materiality and gualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of
our audit work.

and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the Financial Statements.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements
for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or requlation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweiah the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 Issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013, we provide “Annexure-A", a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the said order.
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2, The Comptroller and Auditor General of India has issued directions indicating
the areas to be examined in terms of sub-section (5) of the section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013, the compliance of which is set out in “Annexure=B”,

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and bellef were necessary for the purpose ef our audit.

b) Inour opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehfiensive Income), Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in
Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of accounts.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under section 123 of the Act, read Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

e) Pursuant to Gazette Notification no. 463(E) dated 5th June, 2015 issued by Ministry
of Corporate Affairs,Government of India, provisions of section 164(2) of the Act
are not applicable to the Company, being a Government Company;

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls aver financial
reporting of the Company with reference to these financial statements and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure C" to this report.

g) Pursuant to Gazette Notification no. 463(E) dated Sth June, 2015 issued by Ministry
of Corparate Affairs, Government of India, provisions of section 197 of the Act are
not applicable to the Campany, being a Government Company, and

h) With respect to the other matter to be included in the Auditor’s report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rule.2074, as
amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
explanation given to us:

(a) According to the information provided by the management, the company
has disclosed the impact of pending litigation on its financial position in
its financial statements (Refer Note No.13relating to contingent liabilities
to the financial statements).

(b) The company does not have lang term contracts including derjvative
contracts for which there are any material foreseeable losses.

(c) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education dand Protection Fund by the Company.

(d) (i) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to accounts to the
Financial Statements, no funds (which are material either indjvidually or
in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by

=
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(e)
("

the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company (“*Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(i) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge
and belief, nofunds (which are material either individually or in the
aggregate) have been receivedby the Company from any person or entity,
including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recarded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons orentities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party("Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of
the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(i) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable
and appropriatein the circumstances, nothing has come to our notjce that
has caused us to believe that

the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule11{e), as provided
under(ijand (ii) above, contain any material misstatement.

The company has not declared or paid dividend during the year,

Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2074 for maintaining
books of account using accounting software which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to the Company with
effect from April 1, 2023, and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the
financial year ended March 31, 2023

For AKB Jain & Co
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 003904C

Sd/-

PAWAN DHARAMDASANI

(Partner)

M.N0:430739

Place: Bhopal
Date: 10.07.2023
UDIN: 23430739BGVYWP12580
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ANNEXURE-A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH “REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY
REQUIREMENTS™ OF OUR REPORT ON EVEN DATE TO THE MEMBERS OF MADHYA
PRADESH METRO RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED.
)
(a)
(A) The company has maintained reasonable records showing full particulars,
quantitative details and the situation of Property, Plant & Equipment.

(B) The company does not have any intangible assets. Hence, this clause is not
applicable.

(b) The Company has a regular programme af physical verification of its Property,
Plant and Equipment by whichProperty, Plant and Equipment are verified by
the internal team constituted by the management. As per the report provided
to us, no discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(¢} According to the information & explanations given to us by the management
& on examination of the records produced before us, we report that the title
deeds of the following immovable properties are not held in the name of the
company as at balance sheet date.

Description of Assets No. of Area Gross Block as on 31.03.2023
Properties (Rs. In lakhs)
PPE- Freehold Land | 12 | 67.0466 | 491.42
Hact.

These properties have been acquired by the Company at different dates since inception
of the Company. Further, title of none of these properties are in the name of promoter,
director, relative of promoter or director and employee of the promoter of director
(also refer Note no.17 of Additional Notes to Accounts for further details).

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its
Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets
or both during the year.

(e) According to the information & explanation given to us by the management and on
the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, no proceadings have
been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami property
under Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act 1988 & Rules made thereunder.

(i)
(a) As per the information and explanation given to us by the management, there is
no inventory held by the company. Hence, this clauseis not applicable.
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(b) As per the information and explanation given to us by the management, the
Company does not have working capital limit in excess of five crore rupees during
the year, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security
of current assets, Hence, this clause is not applicable.

(1ii) As per the information and explanation given to us by the management and
relevant records, the company has not made any investments, provided any loans or
advances in the nature of loans or guarantee to companies, firms Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties during the year. Hence, the sub-clauses(a), (b),
(c), (d), (&) and (f) are not applicable.

(iv) In our opinion, & according to information & explanation given to us, the company
has not granted any loan or guarantee gr has not made investments or provided
any guarantee and security to the parties covered under sections 185 and 186 of

{v) As per the information and explanation given to us by the management and
relevant recards, the company has not accepted any deposits or amount which are
deemed to be deposits, which are in contravention to the directives issued by the
Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant
provisions of the companiesAct and the rules framed there under. Further, no order
has been passed by Company law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or
Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any other Tribunal.

(vi) To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not
specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013in respect of the activities carried on by the Company.

(vil) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company is regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs,
duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the appropriate
authorities,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
undisputed statutory dues were in arrears as at 31st March 2023 for a period of
maore than six months from the date they became payable.

(a) As per the information and explanation given to us, no disputed amounts
payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employee’s State Insurance, Income-tax,
Goods and Service Tax, Cess and other statutory dues were outstanding, at the
year end.

{viii) As per the information and explanation given to us by the management and relevant
records, there was no transaction found unrecorded in the books of accounts of the
company which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in
the tax assessment under the Income Tax Act 1961.
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(ix)
(@

(b)

(©)

()

(e)

®

63)

Based on our audit procedures and on the information, explanations and
representation given by the management, we are of the opinion that the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in
the payment of Interest thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our audit procedure, we report that the company has not been declared willful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

Based on our audit procedures and on the information and explanations given
by the management, the company has utilized the money obtained by way of
term loan during the year for the purposes for which they were obtained.

According to the information and explanation given to us, and the procedures
performed by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements
of the company, we report that no fund raised on short-term basis, have been
used for long-term purpose by the company.

According to the information and explanation given to us, and the procedures
performed by us,the company has not taken any funds from any entity or
person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates
or joint venture as defined under the Act.

According to the information and explanation given to us, and the procedures
performed by us, the company has not raised loans during the year on the
pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate
companies.

(@) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further

public offer (including debt instruments). Accordingly, this clause of the Order
is not applicable.

(b) The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of

()
@

(b)

shares or Fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly,

this clause i1s not applicable.

Puring the course of our examination of the books and records of the company
carried out in accordance with generally accepted auditing practices in India
and according the information and explanation given to us, we have neither
come across any instance of fraud on or by the company, noticed or reported
during the year, nor we have been informed of such case by the management.

Mo report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been
filed by us in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government,
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(c) As per information and explanation given by the management there were no
whistle blower complaints received by the company during the year.

(xif) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations glven to us, the
company is not a Nidhi Company as defined under section 406 of the Companies
Act, 2013, Accardingly, this clause Including sub clauses are not applicable.

{xiil) According to the information and explanation provided to us, there were no
transactions with the related parties n compliance with sections 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, 2013.

(xiv)

(a) In our opinion and based on our examination, the company has an internal
audit system which is commensurate with the size and nature of business
except the frequency of internal audit which should be commensurate with
the level of activity undertaken by the auditor.

(b) We have considered internal audit reports of the company issued till date, for
the period under audit.

{(xv) Accarding to the information and explanation given to us, during the year the
company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with them. Hence, provisions of section 192 of the Companies
Act, 2013 have not applicable to the company:.

(xvil)

(a) The company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us the company has not
conducted non-banking financial or housing finance activities.

() The Company is not a Core Investment Company, as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India, Hence this clause and sub-clause (d) is not
applicable,

(xvii) The company has not yet commenced commercial activities and it is under the
implementation stage, thus, reparting requirements under this clause with respect
to cash losses |s not applicable to it

(xvili) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and
accordingly reporting under this clause is not applicable.

(xix)According to the information and explanations given to us by management and on
the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payments of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the
financial statement our knowledge of the board of directors and rmanagement
plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is not capable
of meeting Its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they

- ‘54 T F 7 | 3 B T3 3 F F 3 P -FT 3 J
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fall due within a period of one vear from the balance sheet date,

We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
company and we further state that our reporting is based upon the facts up to the
date of the audit report and we neither.give any guarantee nor any assurance that
all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date,
will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

(xx) The company falls within the [imits specified under section 135 of Companies Act.
However the company does not have positive average net profits as prescribed in
section 135 of the companies act,therefore the company is not required to spend
any money towards CSR. Hence this clause and sub clause in nat applicable.

(xxi)The reporting requirements under clause 3(xxi) is not applicable in respect of audit
of standalone financial statements af the company. Accordingly no comment has
been included in respect of said clause under this report.

For AKB Jain & Co
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 003904C

sd/-

PAWAN DHARAMDASANI
(Partner)

M.N0:430739

Place: Bhopal
Date: 10.07.2023
UDIN: 23430739BGVWP12580
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ANNEXURE-B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 3 under 'Report on ©ther Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section our report of even date to the Members of MADHYA PRADESH METRO RAIL
CORPORATION LIMITED on the Financial Statements far the year ended 31 March 2023,

Report on the Directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor general under Sub-
sectian 5 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"™)

1. Whether the company has system in place to process all the accounting
transactions through IT System? If yes, the implications of processing
accounting transactions outside IT system on the integrity of the accounts
along with the financial implications, if any, may be stated.

+« The Company has a system in place to process all the accounting transactions
through IT system, Software is Password protected and authorization to access
such software is only with the authorized person to safeguard integrity.

« Based on the audit procedures carried out and as per the information and
explanations given to us, no accounting transactions have been processed/
carried outside the IT system. Accordingly, there are no implications on the
integrity of the accounts.

2. Whether there is any restructuring of an existing loan or cases of waiver/
write off of debts/loans/interest etc. made by a lender to the company due
to the company’s inability to repay the loan? If yes, the financial impact may
be stated. Whether such cases are properly accounted for? (In case, lender
is a Government company, then its direction is also applicable for statutory
auditor of Lender Company).

« Onthe basis of information provided by the management and records produced
before us, we report that no restructuring of loans has been done.

3. Whether funds (grants/subsidy etc.) received/receivable for specific schemes
from Central/State Government or its agencies were properly accounted for/
utilized as per its term and conditions? List the cases of deviation.

»  Onthe basis of information provided by the management and records produced
before us, we report that funds received from GoMP & GOl has been properly
accounted for and utilized for the projects as per the terms and conditions of
the sanction.
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4.

5.

7.

Whether the company has taken adequate measures to prevent encroachment
of idle land owned by it. Whether any land of the Company is encroached,
under litigation, not put to use or declared surplus? Details may be provided.

« On the basisof information provided by the management and records produced
before us, we report that lands under possession of the company are free from
encumbrances and suitable measures are in place to protect the same.

Whether the system in vogue for identification of projects to be taken up
under Public Private Partnership is in line with the guidelines/policies of the
Government? Comment on deviation if any.

« 0Onthebasis of information provided by the management and records produced
before us, we report that the system in vogue for identification of projects to
be taken up under public private partnership 1s in line with the guidelines/
Palicies of the government. Further, there are no PPP projects undertaken
currently.

Whether system for monitoring the execution of work vis-a-vis the milestones
stipulated in the agreement is in existence and the impact of cost escalation,
if any, revenues/losses from contracts, etc., have been properly accounted for
in the books.

« Onthe basis of information provided by the management and records produced
before us, we report that the system for monitoring the milestone for execution
of wark is in place i.e, various officers are there in the company for monitoring
the execution of work in addition to General Consultant having various level
of experts. Further, as there is no contract closures in F.Y. 2022-23 accordingly,
there have been no losses from the contracts during the financial year.

Whether funds received/receivable for specific schemes from central/state
agencies were properly accounted for utilized? List the cases of deviations.

= Onthe basis of information provided by the management and records produced
hefore us, we report that funds received from GoMP & GOl has been properly
accounted for and utilized for the projects.

Whether the bank guarantees have been revalidated in time?

» Onthe basis of information provided by the management and records produced
before us, we report that all the bank guarantees have been revalidated in
time, wherever required.

Comment on the confirmation of balances of trade receivables, trade payables,
term deposits, bank accounts and cash obtained.
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« (Onthe basis of information provided by the management and records produced
before us, we report that confirmation of balances of bank accounts including
term deposits have been obtained. There is no trade payables/receivables/
cash-in-hand as on 31.03.2023.

10. The cost incurred on abandoned projects may be guantified and the amount
actually written off shall be mentioned.

» Onthe basis of information provided by the management and records produced
before us we report that no such instance has been observed In FY 2022-23

For AKB Jain & Co
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 003904C

Sd/-

PAWAN DHARAMDASANI
(Partner)
M.N0:430739

Place: Bhopal
Date: 10.07.2023
UDIN: 23430739BGVWP12580
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ANNEXURE-C

(REFERRED IN OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE)

Referred to in paragraph 4(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section our report of even date to the Members of MADHYA
PRADESH METRO RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED on the Financial Statements for the
year ended 31" March 2023.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of Madhya Pradesh Metro Rail
Corporation Limited as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023, we have audited the
internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company on that date.

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining interpal
financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Control sover Financial Reporting issued by The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (‘ICAIY.

These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective companies
policies, safeguarding the assets of the company, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and timely
preparation of reliable financial information’s, as required under the Act.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the relevant Guidance Note (Audit of Internal Financial Controls Qver Financial
Controls) and the Standards on Auditing, bath, issued by the ICAlI and are deemed
prescribed under sub-section (10) of the section 143 of the Act, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial contrels with
reference to Standalone Financial Statements was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adeguacy
of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financizl statements, whether due to fraud
Or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference
to Standalone Financial Statements,

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles.

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that;

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
Company; and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could
have a material effect on the financlal statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financialreporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the Company has, maintained in all material respects, an adequate
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential companents of internal centrol stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAL

For AKB Jain & Co
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 003904C

Sd/-

PAWAN DHARAMDASANI
(Partner)

M.No0:430739

Place: Bhopal

Date: 10.07.2023

UDIN: 23430739BGVWP12580
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MADHYA PRADESH METRO RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED
CIN No. UTE100MP2071556C034434
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 315t MARCH, 2023

{7 in Lakhs)

Farticulars Note No. As at March 31,2023 As at March 31, 2022
(1) | Assevs:
Non-curment Assots
(8) | Property, Plant & Equipment 35w 135381 146423
{1 | Capital Worlt In Progress 4 15611335 T st ol

e} | Financhil Assels
(i} Inbvestments
(i) Tmde Kecowablos

(i) Loans

[lv) Dibar Finacial Adeeis = Frs 7 B
fi} Defarrad Fax Avcals [Nal) 7 A&3.0% 11144
{
(g} | Other Non current Assaty G 45373129 15,306, 15
Total Non-Lurrent Assets 2,44 67575 86,951.48

{2) | current Assets

Bl | tnwantnrles
(h} | Financial Asseis
1 Inyestments

(i) Trade Recaiabley

(i) Cash and cach eoulvalents 9 11,68297 112 07634
(vl Bank balanca Othar than Cath and cash 20uivalents 10 SO0 00
i) Lirans
(1) Other Financlil ssses = 2R3 ABTEH
() | Current Tax assets (Wef) B 25379 19,51
{d) | Gther Curment Assats & E32E8 19T
Tatal Current Assets T5,402.3% 1,12,602.96
TOTAL ASSETS 3,20,082.14 1,99,554.44
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES:
(0 | Equity
{a} | Eouity Share caplial n 12080000 120,600,050
() | Dther Equity 12 208 51 {210,857}
Total Equity 1.45,008.81 1.20,389.11

-

-~ 162

(b
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Particulars Note No. &5 at March 37, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Liabilities
(2} | Mon-current Liabilites :

() Firancal Lakilites
I|J‘ED|'I'1.—1"1’|I'||]E 3 14150406 88,1000
{H)Trade Payablus
(lyather financial labilities 4 26084 35,59
] Prowlsidns 16 6859

(&) | Dofomred Tax Ushilties (hot)

(d)} | Dhes Nop-Cumrent liabililes - -

Total Mon-current Liabilities 1/43,923.39 T2,090.59

(3) | current Uabilities

a) | Financial Liabilities
(1) Bogrowings

(i) Triade Payibles

(1) Dther financial liabilltles 4 29.193.84 8.571:45
(b} | Gthercurant fabll|tes 15 1,69%,34 35309
[ | Provisians It 614 -

Ly | Cureer Tax Liabililes fnet)

Total Current Liabilitizs 31,148.52 7,0
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 3.20.002.14 1,99.554.24
Significant Accounting Policles and Notes to Finafcial Statements 1o 22

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the fimancial statements
As perour raport of oven date

For A i 8 lain & Co. For and an behall of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants

FR No. D03904C

Sdf- Sdj- sd/-

Pawan Dharamdasani (sandeep fain) (Niti Kothari)

Partner Company Secretary Director (Finance) & CFO

M. No, 430739 FCS : 7847 DIN : 09608369

Dt - 10.07.2023

Piace : Bhopal 54/- Sdf-
(Me=raj Mandiel) {Mmanizh Singh)

Dirselor Managlng Director
DIN ; 02037213 DIN : 05277748
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MADHYA PRADESH METRO RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED
CIN Ne, UTS100MP20155GC034434
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 313t MARCH, 2022

(% in Lakhs:
Particulars For the year For the year ended
ended 31.03.2023 11,00:2022
! I Frewneriee from OperEions
| I | .Ertha: Income - i B.4HT.99 . 176604
i- 1] -Tuhi Incoims (1+11) z,-&rl.w 1.:m¢_u.|
i Y Expenses
I i Operating expenss
Changs in inventores .
Emiplenis hapefiis aipenss 18 1,314.54 264,79
[Oiher expenyes 19 142488 faz e
Finamee costs 20 6078 Jogd
Llepreciatinm ang amprtizatn expense 33z 20 Tig.ad
Total expenses (IV) 3,220.99 1,337.45
|l "\ Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax (111-1V) 451.00 428.59
i1l Exceptional ams ki | 113,49
Wil -Pmﬁtf[lnuﬁ before tax (W-vi) - 48100 - 31510
win Tax Expense:
5653 AR
(1) Coumvant Tax
| .lf} Dusfarrad taz [337.65] [a )
i [} Profit (Loss) for the period (VI-VIL 3qLT2 36235
X Other Camprehensive Income
HA[I} | ul‘[ﬁﬂ'lf. that will be reclassifed to profit or ioss
-.;{-ii} IncormiE b eelating o [eems thatwill Be reclassified to
jartaf g lass
8() ITEmis that will not b reclpssifed o profit or e
a(lly Income tax relating to items that will nof be redlassified .
ba praft o
foss

-

— 164

N T T T T T T T T,
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X Total Comprehensive Income for the period (1X+X)
Comprising amn 462.35
Prafit(Loss) and Other Comprehensive Income for the
period)’
xn Earnings per equity share F)
(iiF] i
1) Baslt
{2} Bl bt 0 ain

Significant Accounting Policies and Nates to Financial Statements

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As-per.our report of pyen date

For A'K 8 Fin & Co.

For-and on behall of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountanis:
FR Mo, eO3904C
sd/- Sd/- sdf-
Pawan Dharamdasani (Sandzep Jain) (Miti
Partner Company Secretary Director (Finance) & CFO
M, Mo, 430739 FCS : 747 DIN : 09608369
Date : 10.07.2023
Place: Bhopal 5d/- sd/-
{Mesraj Mandiai) {Manish Singh)
Dirgetor Managing Director
DM : 02037313 DIN : 05277748
........... - ] 166 |
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MADHYA PRADESH METRO RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED
CIN Ne. UTs100MPI0ISSGC034434
Cazh Flow Statement for the Year Ended 315t March, 2023

(* in Lakhs}

Particulars For the year ended 31.05.2023 For the year ended 31.03.2022

A CAZH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :

Het Profit Before Tax 461,00 31510
Adjustment for Duptacmbion 220,73 12052
Limwindimg inferest gn Financsl Assets (262 i1.16]
Inbwiest an FOR (3.002.53) (1.512:31)
(Frafitylosz on Sale of Azsetz 12.07) -
Fresiign Exehungs (GalnLobs {1.54) =
PPE Writtan off 19.%7) -
Firsnos oost B0 T8 J0.62 L
Cperating Prafll Before Worling Capltsl Chanoes (2,263 36 (1,038,758
Adjustments for chanoses in working capltal
Imvaniones . -
Trade reoalvasias - -
Loanm @nd other Assets {71 "1686. 11 T
Trade payable - -
Provvisions and. olhor Labiltitles 22 53A.R3 (26,042 14 )
3136282 (26,057 18}
Cash genarated from Oparations 19,07H.85 INphsm
Taxse (BEG XY (5062 2494 2098
Mot Canh flow from fused in) Operating Activities 18,388.24 7,070,585
B, CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES,
Copdlsl Adwanons {31978} 1171, B8 08
Purchase of Fixed hesutsCanlial W2 {42, e At (&1 770894 )
Digposal of nzgl 052 =
Profiti{Loss) an Sale of Assals 2 -
(Addition) | Ralosze of Fousd Deposll (160, DI O .
Farsyt Excranpgs (Gali)Loss 154 -
[nrest Recelad an FOR 1.1:23.60 _ 1.026.43 _
N=t Canh flow fromijused in) Investing Activitiss {216, 48801 (52582, 79
£. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Increasz (n Share Canils & Shasm Apphisstion Moy 2, 2TR.00 BE, 58200
Frocesds of Lunig T Borrowlngs THATE A a1l 185400
Principat Paymes of lagse (istilites (10E.80 927}
Inkarest pald on l=mme Eahiltias (B0, i) {2 H
Intarest pail other than o laass liabdites
Mat Cash Fow from /(used In)} Financing Activities o7, 5B6.28 14680711
Mat Increase (decraasa) in Sazh & Cash Equivalents [1.00,513,39) B7.043.37
Cash and Cash Eguivistanis 3! the beginning of tha poriod 1120768 Afh. 002249
Cash and Cash Equivalents #t the end of the period 11,562.97 1.12.076,36

Maksl The albtve dimlamsn of caat iows bt pesp peoms=d wider e et methed &8ss ouf = INDG AS T alaEmend ol cash lees oobfsd w50 5
campenie-acl 200 ["act’) e with nge 4 of the companies. [ ndan Apcouphng Stendeds) wies 2015 ang B ralsyan prosision of e =

Aa per owr repon of sven date

For A K B Jain & Co. For and on kehalf of the Board of Directors
Chartared Accountants
FR No. 003304C

G- Sdi-

B (Sandesp Jain] {Niti Kothari)
Pawan Dharsmdasani Company Secretary Dijrectos [Finance) & CFD
Partrier FO8: T84T DN (FE0436T
i, Mo, 430739

Sl Sl
(Noaraj Mandiad) [(Moniah Bingh)
Date 1 10.07.2023 Director Managing Direcior
Placa: Bhopal DM 02037213 CHN: GS2TTT48
o =
— 168
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MADHYA PRADESH METRO RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED
CIN No, UTS100MP20I55GC034434
Statement of Changes in Equity az at 218t March, 2023

a  Equity Share Capital
Fof the Year ended 31.2.2023

Changes in equity

As ot ital durt As at
rticulars share capital dunng
2 31 March 3022 the yaar 2022-23 31 March 2023
Erpuity Share Caplial 1.20,800.00 120800 0
For the Vear ended 31.3.2022
¥ in Lakhsg)

AEL Changes in aguity
by ek S share capital during
1 March 2021 the year 202122

Equity Share Caplial i5.278.00 ERER2DD

Asat
i1 March 2022

1,20,800.00

b Other Equity
For the Vear ended 31.3.2023

Share Application
Money pending Reserves and  Other Comprehensive

(Fin Lakhs)

Farticulars for allotments  Surplus Retained Imcome (OC1)
Earpiing

Balance at the beginning of the reporting
pariod as at April 1, 2022 = (#10.89) = (410.8%)
Share Application monay recaived/Share 2477800 24, 278.00
Allotted
Profit  (loss) for the year Gy AT 317z
Orher Comprahensive Incoma (1)
Tetal Comprahensve Income for the year JarTd 3172
Adjustmmanis -
galance at the end of the reporting period 24,275.00 (&9.77) = 24,208.83
25 &t March 11, 2023
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For the Year ended 31.3.2022

Particulars

[T Laking)

Share Reserves and Surplus Other Comprehansive
Retalned Earnlng Incoime (OcCh)

Mpplication
Money pending
for allotments

Balance at the beginning of the
reporting perlod as at April 1,
20

Shiare appllcation maney recalyed Snerm
Allel ol

Frofit / (loss]) for the year ()

Cittee Comprams=nsive Incame(h)

Adjustmenis

Total Comprehensiva-dncomeé tor the vear

- - frraa) - - {r71n4)

k1L F Ih2 5

I62:25 36225

Balance at the end of the reporting
period as at ‘March 31, 2022

Sl = (410.89) - |- (410.89)

As per our report of even date

For A& K & Jain & Co,
Chartered Accountants
FR Mo, 003904C

sd/-

Pawan Dharamdasani
Partner
M. No. 430739

Bata : 10,07.2023
Placs ;: Bhaopal

Far and on behalfl of the Board of Directors

54/- 5dj-

(Sandeep fain) (Miti Kathari)
Company Secretary Director (Finance) & CFO
FCS: 7847 DIN : 09608369
sdj- s/

{Nesraj Mandioi) {Manish Singh)
Dimector Managing Director
DM : 02037213 DIk : 05277748
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MADHYA PRADESH METRO RAIL CORPORATION
Hotes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 315t March, 2623

Mote 3 3 Property, Plant & Equipment (Right of use Assety)

(¥ in Lalkhs)
Particulars As at 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2032
Gross Carrying Amount
dperning = =
Additions During the Year b ]
Oizposals
Gross Cammying Amount T SF 977.52

Accumulated Depreciation & Amaortization

Cpening Ti80

Amoarsztion chmrged Durmg the Year 1242 7250

[i=potals

Acccumulated Depraciation/ Amortization Al 280

MNet carrying amount 691.70 844,62
Explanatory Note

The Cormpany has adopted Ind AS 116, where the right of use assets is equal to the lease liability. The
comparyy has applied the standard to its leases, pursuant to which recognition of leasing arrangement
gs Right-of-use asset from the date of lease agreement. Accordingly, previous period information
has been restated. This has resulted in intial recognising a right=of- use asset of Rs. 917.52 lakhs and
lease liability of Rs 917.452 takbs In terms of Accounting Policy No 217, Amortisation expenses for the
right-pf-use asset and finance cost on lease liability is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
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MADHYA PRADESH METRO RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED
Motes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 315t March, 2023

Mote 4 : Capital Work In Prograss

@ in Lakdns)
Additions/ Capitalised/
s 2t Ad]ustment Transfer As at
Particulars 1M.0%.2022 during the Duringthe  31.03.2023
year ¥aar
CWWIP- Civil SEructinre & Buldeng 48739505 L IRTHY 128,522 88 - 120,552, 84
CVVTF Prrmanent Wiy, - 3, 78765 3 THT GG - L7705
CWI - Exn During Conetruction 1163503 YA EafhEin 3597
CWUTF - Aolling Stock fAT193 TR HaTLY3
IZWIR - Tragtlon & Pover . 23,405 55 23,400 54 - 23,800.54
LWIF - Signaliing & Tedscom - 23065 230,65 - L3205
"Lonstruction Stores | 23RTG B LIAETE
Total 70,030.08 126,881.27 198.713.35 - 196, 713,35

* Construction stores of Bs. 177836 Lakhs (PY, ML) bying with contractors

(2 in Lakhs)

Additions/ Capitalised/
Particulars 31.::,:;21 zfﬁ;t: ;T uzr:::;f:,:,! 31.:?? .;;n
year Year
O P Tiwll Stmacture & Bullding 173957 JrOoE0E 4837503 ] 48295006
CWIP-—Exp DHit i) Comstructinn 13,290.8% i SEaisi - A LR
Total 29,685,846 40,344.22 T0,030.08 - 70,030.08
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CWIP Ageing Schedule
Capital Wark in Prograss - Bhopal

® in Lakhs)

Project in Progress Ampunt In CWIP for a perfod of

Particulars -3 W =2 yr <1 yr Total CWIP as

on31,03.2023

CWIP- Civil'5tructure & €h||lli||||_4 31,705.54 Ffl b T 1T g8 16, 50700 43 5667
OWIP-Permanent Way . - - TR4. 88 184 88
CWIP- Exp diring constructinn 3,404 74 PR TR A,5365.45 BH54.53 120437
CWIP - Bolling Stuek - - - 125857 E &R
CWIP - Tactlon & Foussr 013329 [P REE R

CWIP - srgnalling & Telecom . (Al 716301
Canstruction Stores - - - &334 63,38
Grogs Total (Profect in Progress) &,561.18 10,345,346 20,250.97 39,768.84 046,35
Project Temporarily Suspended - . . . 2

Capltal Waork In Pregress - indore

{® 1 Lakns]
Progect In Prograss Amount in CWIP for a pernod of

Particutars 23 yr 12 yr < ‘yr Total CWIP as

on 31032023
CWIP- Clvll Stnuctups & Building 1,330.84 £ T4 15,248 F [EE RELER A f4.888 18
CWIP- Permanent YWay 300278 300278
CWIP-_Exp auning canafruction 360778 2505 57 4,643 75 B1Z41 12027 861
CWIP = Rolllng Stook : . . 301558 301536
CWIP - Traclion & Poised . . . 14 206 23 14 256 25
CWIP - Slonnlling & Telecom - - 1,168 45 1,158 45
Construchon Stores . . . 117838 107838
Gross Total (Project In Progress) 5,006.62 7,652.70 20,083.25 86.914,43 119,667.00

Project Temporarily Suspended . - = . -
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MADHYA PRADESH METRO RAIL CORPORATION LIMITEDS

Motes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 175t March, 2023

i in Lakhs)
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Particulars
Man-Curment Current Mon-Current Current
5 Other Financial Assets

Security Doposit 44571 B0.05 gL
intorest, Accrued Bul Mot Due on FO, Saneep B, 76697 40738
saving A

« | Oiher 100
Granl Récenalle From GIY - FI6:99

Total 40,71 2,754.195 .50 45738

[(Fin Lakhs)

As at March 31, 2023 Asat March 31, 2022

Particulars

Man-Curredt Current Non-Current Current

B Other Asssis
Capital Advances

Mstumnes lo Contragtaragamsl Bankl Cusmantess

(Sucured and Contidensd Gond)

Mabilization Advances 21,434.32 - 10.363.43

(Linsacurad and Considered Gond) !

o Advances for Capltal Expanditur 467741 - 4 530,01

Other Advances - 283 - 213
*** Duposil - 81115

Prapaid Expanses [ 14 15 0k 201 14 65

Deferred Cost duo to Fair Valuation :

Pre-pat Ren Exparses 103, 55 a3.04 13,70 333

Total 46,123.23 f3Las 15,306.15 181

* Receiyabie from Central Bamk of |nds
“ Advances glven to government bodiesfauthorities/milways tor Capltol Expenditure,
== Daposits with MPPRVWEL of Bs, 81114 Lakhs will be adjusted against energy congumption
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MADHYA PRADESH METRO RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED
Hotes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(¥ in Lakhs}
Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March-31, 3022
T [eforred Tux Assats (Net)
AL the =yinning af the wos {1144 1108
Charged / (Credit) to Statesmunt of Profit s Loss 1765 BEIE
Total AdR.09 TI1.44
Explanatory note:

As at 31.03:.2023 As at 31.03.4022

Particulars

Tax effect on items constituting defarred Tax Assets

Camylng valus ol Denteciatia PPE an per thie Incorms Ted Aot 54 5F 33271
Carmyng wabue of Depreciabie PPE as per tho Books 175 147.68
Sun otal (DTA) 93.80 7516
Pravision for Employes Benalil [DTA) 70.95

Diffamce i carrying value of CWIR [DTA) 1,54%.850 34403
Carrylrig value of lagne Assgts (OTL) BR1. 70 g34°52
Camymng value of laase fability (BT o145 LT
Teat aliss 178441 A48
Timx. Rale 25,17 #0175
Total Deforred Tax Adsots 445.09 111.45

i* in Lakhs}

Mots Particuiars Az 5t March 31, 2023 Az at March 31, 2022
B Current Tax Assets
Provision during the year 45693 5103
Currsnt Advance-Ta incllifing TOS oz .64
Total 25319 T9.57
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(?in Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 3, 2023 As at March 3, 2022

g Cash and cash eguivalents

Eashy i hand
Balances with Fanks (Cuirent ! Sweep [ Saving 11,562 47 (R T
& FOW) Tepasity wilth maturity of less than
e monks

Total 11,562.597 1.72,0786.36

(¥ irl Lakhs)

Particulars A% at March 21, 2003 Az ar March 21, 2032

0 Bank balance other than Cash and cash

equivalents Doposite faving driginal marurity Ao 00000
mgre than 3 manths and matlaring within =
mnintliz
Total &0,000.00 -

The atoee nciudes wnublzed Equity Contnbution
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MADHYA PRADESH METRO RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED
Hotes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(* m Lakhs}
hote Particulars As at March 31, 2023 Asat March 37, 2022
12 Gther Equity

Retalned Earnings

Surplus At thg padginmning of T o (a10:89) {77314)

Prafitfoss during the yoar MR 5L

Transfer during the year

Total (69.17) {a10.89)

Share Application Money Pending Tor Allotment

Gpening Balanoe

Gl S _

Cakp

Moy recelved during the year

Cal 2. ITR.00

Galp :

Closing Balance

Gal 24.778.00

GoMPp

Total 24,706.83 {470.89)
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MADHYA PRADESH METRO RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED
Hotes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(7 in Lakhz)

As al Az at
Particulars Mareh 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Nen-Currant Currenid Non-Cumranl Currant

13 Borrowings
A5, 522,00 - 30,726.00 -

Laan Irom GO (FTA)
Current Moturitles of Long tarm Borrowings
Intarest Free Subordinate Dabt
|ttarest Free Subordnate Chebl from Gol for Takes 15, H82.00 - 11,184, 00 -
Irfsissl Fres Subordinate Beb from GoMP o 36,880.00 - 1.200.00
TaxeEs
Intmresl Frse Subcrdnats Eetn from GoMP lar Langd <0, 000106 - 20,0004
and
Interest Free Subomiinaie Dent from GoMP o (02 20,200 56 - 5.000.00

Tetal 141,584.96 - EB.108.00 -

Explainatory Note:

Interesl Free Subordinate Debts from Gol & GoMP ara repayable after Lhe repayment of Interest Bearing
extemal borrowings. Loan/ Subordinate Debt provided by Golf GoMP are at the same terms and
conditions at which such loans are provided to other metr projects and are therefore considered 1o
beal lair value.

intergst bearing loan from Gol against Eurppean Invesiment Bank includes INR 45522 Crore recelved
from Gol for Bhopal project  bot the amount has not been released from E18 to Gol. Hence the terms of
the loan are unlderitified.

European investment Bank (EIB) has signed Finance contract to Finance Euro 250 Million & Euro 150
Million on 20 Dec 2019 &8 Dec 2022 respectively, which gre to be made avallable to MPMRCL through
gross budgetary resources in the form of Pass Throwsgh Assistance (FTA) from Goi. EIB |loans are sovereign
leans and therefore Gol Is arranging PTA for execution of the works. However, there is no disburserment
made by BB to Gal. Gol till FY 2022-29 released INR 45522 Crore uhder the head PTA ta MPMRCL far the
execution of Bhopal Project. The sald FTA has been shown under Barrowings as Non Current liabilities.
The Project agreement between EIB and the company was signed In March 2022
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(?in Lakhs)
Az al March 31, 2023 Az al March 31, 2022
Farticulars
Non-Curret Curremnt Man-Currant Curramt
14 Other Financial Liabilites
- 3 ET - 16,59
Earnast Money Deposit
e | Grant fram MO Gavernmant 1. A36.0% - 1, A3523 -
Gramt fromn Gowatimaent of Indla - - bae A4S
# | Retarition | Deposit - G480 5T 125842
Foyehie 1o Contractors: (CWIF) - 2149818 - 581080
Olher Payable - 711,75 B77.18
Loama Liakility B34.78 128.67 T61.45 10680
Total 2,269 54 2910304 3,981.592 6,511.45

# &5 the projects are under execution stage, the retention money are payable only after issue of taking
ower cartificate. However as per tender clause regarding acceptance of BG in leu of SD / Retention
Money, Hence retention maney as deducted from the-amount of work done by the contractors has been
classified under other Financial Liabilities (Current) in current year,
## Crants from the Covernment/MNon-Government or other authorities are shown as 'Grants’ under
other financial labilities (Nen- current). Futher, there is no defined plan for consumption ol full value
of grant balance at the end of the F/Y

(z.in Lakhs)

As at March 31, 2023 Az at March 31, 2022
Particulnrs

Nan-Current Current Hon-Current Currant

15 Othar Liabilies

Cher Statutory Dues | - G145 - S

Goods & Semnce Tax

|feaie Tax Deductsd &1 Soums - {04037 - ABH. T4
Labour Cezs : 23750 2687
Professiong) Tax - 038 - 037
Ingaeri: Tax Payable - 027

Total 1,880.34 HR3.29
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(7in Lakhs)

As al March 31, 2023 Asx at March 34, 2022
Particulars
Mon-Current Curment Man-Clurment Current
16 Provisions
For Emploves Banaflis 27.83 23.40 -

Lesava Encashment provision

Peeat Ratremen! Madical Faoiity 024 - -
Empiayis Triring! Baafi) 30:72 3330 =
Tokal B&.50 56.74 . -

[T in Lakhs}
Particulars For the year ended For the year snded
31,03.2023 31.03.2022
7 Other iIncome

ntErest |neoime 2284 1, &55.04
te5s L Exp iring Construction (1.205.40) [2e03)
intierest |noomie from Eank deposils 30253 LB
sile ol Tender Foos 537 3013
rafit o saleof assels 1.

Other Ipcoire g 468
Ifecime onFake Waluatian (Unswinding af lilerest on 50 242 118
Grant rol.f 21124

Total 3,681.599 1,Tk6.04

1 other Comprehensive Income

Cain on Finahdal Asnels

nreallsed Galn

Total - -
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For theyear

(?in Lakhs)

For the year

ended 31.03.2023 ended 31032022
18 Emplayes benefit expenses
Salanes and wages 1,206 S8 31604
Contributions o Providienl Fund & Others 107 95 2815
Total 1,314.54 344,70

Particulars

For the year

ended 31.03.2023

(* in Lakhs)
For the year
ended 31.03.2022

19 Other expensss =

1 Avartjnemient & Pramotion Expensss
i Bank CHarges

| Camminication &7 Exponsos

£ Consulbancy Charge:

5 Event; Seminar & Traming Expenses
[ [ifice & Mlsc Expensas

T Ratas & Taxps

it Legal & Professlonal Fees

) Manpower Hiring Expensea

10 Prest [tk forial Masentaershlp Fesy

1 CiFice Rany & Eletricity Expanss
2 Primtng & Stationany Expe nse

14 Stamp Duty

td Tour nind Trivel Expannes

15 Yehicle Hiring Expenses

14 Wiritten Q1T Fixed Assers (F&T)

T Raimburssment Expentes

18 Audit Fees

Sratutony Audlt Fes
Tiw Abdll Fee
Imtareeal Audit Fee

Total

125,34
012
T2
LR a4
A8
18.30
AR
a8
259
16,26
134,19
il
Bt.be
43.04
Tal.E4
LTy

—
i

0.8¢
0.4
0.89
1,624,868

104,99
(R
in23

2724

1325
935
g.as

B340
1580

14240

26,08

0.8%
012
0.83

#3252

Particulars

For the year

ended 3I1L.037033

(#in Lakhs)

For the year
ended 31,03.2003

20 Finance Costs :
Intesesl SxpEenses

Urwinding of interest HlE a7
Exparises Jthar Barrowing
rosts

Total 8078 20.62
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MADHYA PRADESH METRO RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED
Motes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended $1st March, 2023

(¥ in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
3.03.2023 F1.03.2022
bl Exceptional tems
1206
Head Gfice Benl
Reimpurcemenl of Manpowsr expanses Lo Indor 1m
smart city Bavelopment Corp Ltd,
Resmbwrsement of eléectrlclity Bipermes (o Bhopal - 217
Smart ety Development Carp Lid
Duties and taxes - 247
Hedersal of auress provision of previous yosrs (a2
Total 113.49

LF A Laxhh)

Particulars For the year ended For the yoar
11.03.2023 ended 31.03.2022
n Earning Per Share (EPS)

Prafit after tixartributable to Eguity Skarahilders 34172 8725

Welghted avarage namber of Eguity Shares (In pes) - 853§ 1,28, 00 50,000 14 15,55, 540

Weeighted average sumber of Bguity Shares (In g - | 24,00 A6 5TS 1h16,50,840

Diluted

Mommimal Valie of Equity per share(n Rzl 10.00 70,00

Basic Eamiings paar shara {n fe) 00 840

Diluted Earnings per share (in 24) 0Nz a0
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.

2.1

2.2

2.3

=i

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH 2023

Corporate Information

Madhya Pradesh Metro Rail Corporation Limited (MPMRCL) is incorporated under
the Companies Act, 2013 on 09th July, 2015 being Government Company within
the meaning of Section 2 (45) of The Companies Act, 2013. The Company was set
up by the Government of Madhya Pradesh (GoMP) with 100% shareholding and
subsequently converted to a Joint Venture SPV of Government of India (Gol) and
GoMP with 50:50 shareholding to implement Mass Rapid Transit System in Bhopal
and Indore city by providing the Metro Rail and is entrusted with the tasks of
subsequent expansion of the Metro netwark, its operation, maintenance and allied
activities to ensure sustainable operations.

Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies applied by the company in the preparation
of its financial statements are listed below. Such accounting policies have been
applied consistently to all the periods presented In these financial statements
unless otherwise indicated.

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accaunting Standards (referred to as Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, as
amended from time to time and other relevant provisions of the Act.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financlal statements have been prepared under the historic cost conversion
with the exception of certain assets and liabilities that are required to be carried
at fair value by Ind AS. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
ar paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. Financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee
('INR"), which is also the functional currency of the company.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at original cost, less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. When significant parts
of Property, Plant and Equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Company de-recognizes the replaced part, and recognises the new part with its own
associated useful life and it is depreciated accordingly. All repair and maintenance
costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Praperty, Plant and Equipment are eliminated from financial statements, either on
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disposal or when retired from active use. Losses arisina in the case of retirement
of Property, Plant and Equipment and gains or losses arlsing from disposal of
Property, Plant and Equipment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss
in the year of occurrence.

Deposit Work/Contracts are capitalized on completion on the basis of statement
of accounts received from executing agencies and in its absence on the basis of
technical assessment of the work executed.

Depreciation on assets has been provided on WDV basis at the useful lives specified
in the Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013, Depreciation on additions/deductions
is calculated pro-rata from/to the period of additions/deductions.

Property, Plant &Equipment, and Intangible Assets costing INR 5,000.00 or less
have been deprecated/amortized fully in the year of purchase considering the
materially aspect.

The residual value of 5% of the ariginal cost of the asset has been considered and
deducted for charging depreciation as per Schedule 1l of Companies Act, 2013.

Maobile Handset provided to employees, depreciation has been provided on Straight
Line method over useful life of asset i.e. 2 years based on technical estimation
with no residual value.

The assets residual value, useful life and method of depreciation are reviewed at
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

2.4 Intangible assets

Software costs and other Intangible assets are included in the balance sheet as
intangible assets when it is probable that associated future economic benefits
would flow to the Company. In this case they are measured initially at cost of
acquisition and then amortised on a WDV basis over their estimated useful lives.
All other costs are expensed in the statement of profit and loss as and when
incurred. Expenditure on research activities is recognized as an expense in the
period in'which it is incurred,

2.5 Land

Land is recognised as an asset on the basis of control as required by the Eramework
for the preparation and presentation of financial statements in accordance with
Indian Accounting Standards.

The land parcels handed over by the landowners including various government
bodies and departments and taken possession by the company have been capitalized
at the time of taking the possession of the land by the company without waiting
far the registration of title deeds in the name of the company.

Enhanced compensation, if any, shall be booked as and when the payment is due
since the amount cannot be estimated.

Cost of rehabllitation and resettlement is added to the cost of land.

=
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Payments made towards cost or compensation related to the land including lease-
hold land in possession, cost of acquisition of structures less sale proceeds of such
structures demolished are treated as cost of the land or lease-hold land.

Payrment made towards land acquired on temporary basis is amortised over the
possession period af the land.

Land parcels received/acquired from various State Government/State Government
bodies/departments are accounted for at nominal value.

Land parcels identified in the alignment necessary for execution of project and
acquired from other agencies/private parties are accounted at acquisition cost.

2.6 Capital Work-in-progress

Assets under installation andfor construction as at the balance sheet date are
shown as Capital Work in Progress. In respect of works contract, Capital Work
in Progress is booked on Engineers’ work certification. Capitalization process is
completed when the assets is ready for its intended use. Claims including price
variations are accounted for on acceptance. Liquidated Damages are accounted for
on settlementof final billand deducted from Cost, [(ncome pertaining to construction
period such as interest income (other than from temporary deployment of funds
received by way of equity, interest free subordinate-debt and grant) is adjusted
against the expenditure during construction.

2.7 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets - Property, Plant and Equipment

The Company assesses at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication
that any property, plant and equipment and intangible assets or group of assets,
may be impaired. If any such indication exists the recoverable amount of an asset
is estimated to determine the extent of impairment, if-any. When it is not passible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates
the recoverable amount of the CCGU (cash generating unit) to which the asset
belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss to the extent,
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is higher of an asset’s fair value less cost of dispasal and value in use. Value in
use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value
using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and risk specific to the asséts.

The impairment loss recognised in prior accounting period is reversed if there has
been a change in the estimate of recoverable amount

2.8 Finance Cost
Borrowing costs include exchange differences arising from foreign currency
borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of
qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the cost of such assets. A gualifying
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2.9

asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs, if any are charged to the Statement of Prafit and Loss for
the period for which they are incurred.

Inventories
Inventories are valued as under:

i.  Raw material, Stores & Spares are valued at lower of cost or net realisable
value whichever is lower. Cost is ascertained on weighted average basis.

ii. Work in Process at cost including related overheads.

ili. Finished Coods & Stock-In trade are valued at cost or estimated realisable
value whichever is lower, Cost comprises of material, labour and applicable
overhead expenses.

Cost of inventories comprises of cast of purchase, cost of conversion and other
costs including manufacturing overheads in bringing them to their respective
present location and cond|ition,

However during the year or at the end of the financial year, the Company does not
hold any Inventory thus reporting requirements are not applicable to it.

2.10 Foreign Exchange Transactions

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate
prevailing at the time of transaction,

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated at exchange
rates as at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement or translations of monetary items
are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which these arise.

2.11 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable:
Amounts disclosed as revenue is net of returns, trade allowances, rebates, value
added taxes and amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

The company recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity and
specific criteria have been met for each of the company's activities. The company
bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of
customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

The company is not yet commenced its commercial activities thus the requirements
of this clause is not applicable to it
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2.11.1 Interest Income

Interest is recognized on a time propertion, taking into account the amount
outstanding and rate applicable.

2.11.2 Other Income

Other Income is recognised when right to receive is established.
2.12Employee Benefits
2.12.1 Short Term Employee Benefits

All employee benefits falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the
service are classified as short-term employee benefits.

2.12.2 Post-Employment Benefits

a) Defined Contribution Plans: The obligation to employee’s provident fund is a
defined contribution plan, The contribution paid/payable is recognized in the
perlod in which the employee renders the related service. The company has
defined contribution plans where the company pays pre-defined amounts and
does not have any legal or constructive obligation to pay additional sums for
post-employment benefits.

b) Defined Benefit Plan:

Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and obligation towards PRMBs,
sick & earned leave is computed at the end of each Financial Year on the basis
of an actuarial valuation and provided for.

2.13 Accounting for Taxes on Income

Income tax is determined in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act,
1961.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach an temporary differences
at the repoerting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside the statement of profit and loss.
Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable
right exists to set off current tax assets against current income tax liabilities
and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.
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2.14Financial instruments
2.14.1 Financial Assets
A) Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities, which are not at fair value through
profit or loss, are adjusted to the fair value on initial recognition. Purchase and
sale of financial assets are recognised using trade date accounting.

B) Subsequent measurement

For financial assets maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the
carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these
instruments.

2.14.2 Financial liabilities
A) Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognized at fair value and in case of loans, net of
directly attributable cost. Fees of recurring nature are directly recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss as finance cost.

B) Subsequent measurement

For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet
date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of
these instruments.

2.14.3 Effective Interest Rate (EIR) is calculated as follows:

i.  Financial assets & Financial Liabilities which are Interest bearing at market
rates: EIR in these cases are eguivalent to instruments interest rate.

il. Other financial assets or Financidl Liabilities: SBI - MCLR (1 Year)

ill. Right of Use (ROU) Assets: SBI - MCLR (1 YEAR) applicable on the date of lease
agreement.

2.15 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

a) Provisions are recognized for liabilities that can be measured only by using a
substantial degree of estimation, if

I.  The Company bhas a present obligation as a result of a past event.
ii. A probable outflow of resources is expected to settle the obligation, and
iif. The amount ef the obligation can be reliably estimated.

If the effect of the time value of maney is material, provisions are discounted
using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to
the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cosL
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b} Reimbursement expected in respect of expenditure required to settle a provision is
recognized only when it is virtually certain that the reimbursement will be received.

c) Contingent Liability is disclosed in the case of

i. A present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the abligation.

ii. A present obligation when no reliable estimate is possible, and

iil. A possible obligation arising from past events where the probability of outflow
of resources is not remote.

d) Contingent Assets are disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

e) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets are reviewed at each
Balance Sheet date.

2.16Earning Per Share

Basic EPS is computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable 1o the equity
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of Ordipary shares
outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is computed by adjusting the net profit
ar loss attributable to the ordinary equity shareholders and the weighted average
number of ordinary equity shares outstanding, for the effects of all dilutive
potential Ordinary shares,

2.17 Leases
Company as a lessee:

The company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of a
contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
underlined asset, the company assesses whether:

i.  The contract involves the use of an identified underlying asset,

il. The company has substantially all the economic benefits from use of the
underlying asset through the period of the lease, and

ill. The company has the right to direct the use of the underlying asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the company recognises a right-of-use
asset (“ROU") and a corresponding lease lability for all lease arrangements in
which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short
term leases) and leases of low value assets.

For short term and leases of low value assets, the Company recognises the lease
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease. Lease charge payable against each lease agreement over the total tenure
of lease period above Rs. 1.00 crore |s considered as material and accordingly this
standard is applied.
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The ROU assets are initially recognised at cost, which censist of initial amount
of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the
commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease
incentives.

The ROU assets are subsequently measured at rost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses, if any.

The ROU assets are amortized/depreciated from the commencement date on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the
underlying asset.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the future lease
payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit In
the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR). The
lease liability is subsequently re-measured by increasing the carrying amount to
reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the
tease payments made.

A lease liability is re-measured upon the occurrence of certain events such as a
change in the lease term or a change in an index or rate used to determine lease
payments. The re-measurement normally also adjusts the leased assets.

The Lease liability and ROU assets have been separately presented in the Balance
Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

In respect of assets acquired an lease by paying full consideration, being the
transaction price, such assets have been recognised under the head ROU assets
at transaction price with corresponding lability at nil. In other cases, ROU asset is
equal to lease liability.

Land parcels acquired for the projects which have infinite/perpetual possession
with the company and effective control also vests with the company, hence
depreciation/amartisation is not required.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and
benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income,
if any, from operating lease is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease except the case where incremental lease reflects inflationary
effect and lease expense is accounted in such case by actual rent for the period.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership are transferred from the company to the lessee. Amounts due from
lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Company’s net
investment in the leases, Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods
to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in
respect of the lease,

o
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2.18Segment Reporting - Identification of Segments

In the opinion of the management, there is only one repartable business segment
as envisaged by Ind AS 108 on ‘Operating Segment’ issued by Institute of Chartered
accountant of India. Accordingly, no separate disclosure for segment reporting
is required to be made in the financial statements of the Company. Secondary,
segmentation based on geography has not been presented as the Company operates
primarily in India and the Company perceives that there is no significant difference
in its risk and returns in operating from different geographic areas within India.

The ‘Managing Director’ is the chief operating decision maker who assesses the
financial performance and position of the company and makes strategic decisions.

2.19Use of estimates and judgement

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires that
management of the Company makes estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of income and expenses of the peried, the reported balances
of assets and liabilities and the disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as
of the date of the financial statements. The key assumptions concerning the
future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. The company has based
its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances
arising beyond control of the management.

2.20Prior Period Expenses and Income

Income / Expenditure relating to a prior period which doss not exceed 0.50% of the
total turnover / gross income are treated as Income / expenditure of current year.

2.21Government Grant

Government grants are recognized where there is reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received, and all attached conditions will be complied with, When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognized as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are
expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognized as income in equal
amounts over the life of the related assets in proportion to depreciation on those
assets.
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MADHYA PRADESH METRO RAIL CORPORATION LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2023
2.22 Additional Notes to Accounts

1. Funding Pattern of the Company
Madhya Pradesh Metro Rajl Corporation Limited (MPMRCL) Is incorporated under
the Companies Act, 2013 on 09th July, 2015 being Government Company within
the meaning of Section 2 (45) of The Companies Act, 2013, The Company was set
up by the Government of Madhya Pradesh (GoMP) with 100% shareholding and
subsequently converted to a Joint Venture SPV of Government of India (Gol) and
GoMP with 50:50 shareholding to implement Mass Rapid Transit System in Bhopal
and Indore city by providing the Metro Rail and is entrusted with the tasks of
subsequent expansion of the Metro network, its operation, maintenance and allied
activities to ensure sustainable operations. Appraved Funding Pattern is as under:
(T in Lakhs)
Source Bhopal Project Indore Project
Gol Equity 4,193,00 90,684.00
Gol Subordinate Debt for Central Taxes 12.25%,00 25,952.00
COMP Equity B4,19.00 90,684.00
GoMP Subordinate Debt for Central Taxes - 32.251.00 36,252.00
Loan from bilateral/multilateral agencies | 3,49,334.00 3.20.000.00
Intetoial Borrowing { Bond by GoMP | . £2,911.00
Total Cost Excluding Land, R&R and PPP Components 5,82,222.00 6,38,183.00
PPP Components A44.000L00 44,000.00
Total ! 6.26,222.00 6,82,183.00
GaMP SD for Land and R&R (100%) 3,2,160.00 32,558.00
State Taxes (SG5T) to be borne by GoMP | 24,607.00 25;010,00
IDT to be borme by GoMP 11,157.00 10,299.00
Total Completion Cost 65,94,740.00 7.50,080.00
2. Capital Commitments
Estimated amount of contracts including foreign currency contracts net of advances
remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for is T 7,02,578.78
Lakhs as on 31.03.2023.
3. Other Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed is ¥ 807.63 Lakhs as on
31.03.2023.
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4. Information in respect of Audit Fees
(¥ in Lakhs)
Particulars For 2022-23 For 2021-22
Statutory Audit Fee 0,89 0.8%
Tax Audit Fee 0.47 0.12
Internal Audit Fee 0.89 0.89

* Amounts are including Taxes.

5. The Company has a system of obtaining periodic confirmation of balances from
banks and other parties, So far as payables and loans and advances at the end of
Financial Year are concerned, balance confirmation letters were sent to the parties.
Some of the balances are subject to confirmation/ reconciliation, adjustments, if
any, will be accounted for on confirmation/reconciliation, which in the opinion of
the management will not have a material impact.

6. Information in respect of Micro, Small and Medium enterprises

(T in Lakhs)

Sr. No Particulars 2022-23 2021-21

1 Amount remaining unpaid to any supplier

\a) Principal Amount 576.65 739,53
| b} Interest due thereon nIL MiL
. gﬁ.mount of Interest paid in terms of section 16 of the Micro,
'Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along NIL MIL
(with the amount paid to the supplier beyond the appointad
‘day.
1 (Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay
|In making payment (which have been paid but beyond the
?a;:pulnmd day during the year) but without adding the interest NIL MIL
\specified under the Micro, Small and Meadium Enterprises
| Development Act, 2006
4 |Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid ML MIL
g éﬁmmunt af further interest remaining due and payable even
|in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest
‘dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for
;the purpase of disallowance as a deductible expenditure ML MIL
 under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
| Bevelopment Act, 2006,

-

Includes ¥ 239,53 lakhs payable to M/S Rohit Association cities and Rail Pvt. Ltd. in
previous year and current year's figures. As the case Is sub-judice and the liability
is not ascertainable as on 31st March, 2023. Hence, the interest could not be
calculated and disclosed. Further this fact is disclosed under contingent liability.
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This information is required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 which has been determined to the extent
such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the
Company.

7. Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS-1) “ Presentation

of Financial Statements” Capital Management

Ratios: Companies shall disclose dll those ratios which are prescribed and shall
explain the items included in numerator and denominator for computing the below
ratios. Moreaver, if any change in the ratio is more than 25% as compared to the
preceding year then explanation for the same shall be provided.

Ratlos Numerator Denominatar Current Previous k] fieason for variance

Perlod Period Variance

Thiz decreasze is
primarily on atcount of
rEd|J:1r-f|n i cash and
rash equivalent and due!
Current Ragic| Current Assat Currant Liability 24300 159162 -g4.709 o Increass n-payables |
to contractors.

Intrease n the

Clebt-souity Total:Deb: Total Equity (Equity Lorrowlngs s more
ratio (Borrowing) | shore capital and other | 0.59764 056587 T2.59 thian the ncreases inthei
auity) shareholders funds.
Average Shareholders Bue o increase in the
Returm on Mat Income Enuity (Equity shara 0.0028 0.0047 L sharehoiders’ funds,
ga ity (after tax)  |capital and ather equity)

Retum on EBIT (Prafit | Capital Employed (Tatal
capital before lnterest| equlty and Borrawing) | 00018 c.0ma -0.73
employed and tax)

Other ratios required by Division I of Schedule 11l to the Companies Act,2013 are not
applicable on the company, as there are no transaction related to the ratios.

8. Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS-116) "Leases"

a) The Company has adopted Ind AS 116, where the right of use assets is equal to
the lease liability. The company has applied the standard to its leases, pursuant
to which recognition of leasing arrangement as Right-of-use asset from the date
of lease agreement. Accordingly, previous period information has been restated.
This has resulted in initial recognising a right-of-use asset of Rs. 917.52 lakhs and
lease liability of Rss 917.52 lakhs in terms of Accouting Policy No. 2.17. Amortisation
expenses for the right-of-use asset and finance cost on lease liability is recognised
in the statement of profit and loss.
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b) Future minimum lease payments as on 31st March 2023 are as follows:

¥ in Lakhs)

Mintmum Lease Payment Bue

Within 1 Year 179.97 53.30 126.67
1-2 Yedrs 198,18 a4.43 153,75
2-3 Years 208.09 33.47 174.42
24 Years 218.49 21.46 197.03
4-5 Years 11726 .67 109.59
After 5 Years

Tatal 921,99 160.53 761.46

€) The Company has taken on lease/rent premises for office space in Bhopal. This

9.1

b)

lease agreement are renewable on mutually agreed term but are cancellable
having low value. Hence, treated as short-term leases/leases of low-value asset.

Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)-19 "Employee
Benefits"

General description of various defined employee's benefits schemes are as
under:

Provident Fund

The company's Provident Fund ismanaged by Regional Provident Fund Commissioner.
The company pays fixed contribution to provident fund at pre-determined rate. The
liability is recognised on accrual basis.

Gratuity

The company has a defined benefit plan. Every employee who has rendered
continuecus service of five years or more is entitled for gratuity @ 15 days salary
(15/26 x last drawn basic pay plus dearness pay / dearness allowance) for each
completed year of service on superannuation, resignation, terminatian, and
disablemeant or on death.

The disclosure of information as required under Ind AS - 19 have been made in
accordance with the actuarial valuation and liability is recognised an the basis of
actuarial valuation.

In respect of deputationist employee, contribution is calculated as per lending
arganization / Govt. of India Rules and is accounted for on accrual basis.
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<)

d)

9.2

a)

Leave

The company provides for earned leave benefits and half-pay leave to the employees
of the company, which accrue annually at 30 days & 20 days respectively. Only the
leave in the encashable leave account is encashable once in a calendar year while
in service and a maximum of 200 days (including non-encashable portion and hatf
pay leaves without commutation) on superannuatian, The liability on this account
is recognised aon the basis of actuarial valuation.

In respect of deputationist employee, contribution is calculated as per lending
organization / Govt. of India Rutes and is accounted for on accrual basis.

Post - retirement medical Facility

The company has Post-retirement medical Facility (PRMF), under which retired
employees and the spouse are provided medical facility for indoor treatment at
the same rate as applicable to regular employee. The liability on this account is
recognized on the basis of acturial valuation.

Pension

The company has national pensjon scheme (NPS) towards creating retirement
carpus for pension of employees. This scheme is aptional, and company's abligation
is limited to pay 2.5% of basic pay of enrolled employee. This scheme s managed
by Axis Bank. The contribution to the scheme for the period is grouped under
employee cost on Accrual Basis.

In respect of deputations employee, contribution Is calculated as per lending
organization / Govt. of India Rules and is accounted for on accrual basis.

The summarized position of various benefits recognised in the Statement of
Profit & Loss, Other Comprehensive income (0Cl) and Balance Sheet & other
disclosures are as under:

Net Defined benefit Obligations
(¥ in Lakhs)

Particulars Gratuity Leave PRMF

(Unfunded) (Unfunded) (Unfunded)

Defined Benefit Obligation ] L nm 28.90 10.24
PY. - - =

Fair vilue of plan and assets CY
PY.

Fum-:tea status (R I - - =
P.Y. - -

Effect of asset ce_ulng CY. ' - - =
Py - = a

Miet Dehned l;ler:e_ﬁt Aszeis J {L:-;itiliitieé} C.Y. I 31.81 2890 10.24

PY. . -

197 —




Madhya Pradesh Metro Rall Corporation Limited Annual Report 2022-2023

b) Movement in defined benefit obligation
(* in Lakhs)

Particulars Gratuity Leave PRMF

(Unfunded) (Unfunded) (Unfunded)

Definad Benefit Obligation-Beginning C.Y.
af the year PY, - | - -
Current Service cost | C.Y. 3181 2890 10.24
P - - -
Interest cost CY. -
Py, . - -
Benefits Paid CY. - -
PY. - . -
Past Service cost-Plan amendments Y - 1 =
_and Acguisition Y, -
Re-measuraments-actuarial loss/ . CY | . - [l -
_(aain) S . - : : :
Defined benefit Obligation-End of the CY. 31.81 28.20 10.24
Year PY : -

c) Movement in defined benefit obligation

(% in Lakhs)
Particulars Gratuity Leave PRMF
(Unfunded) (Unfunded) (Unfunded)
Current service cost | CY 3181 | 2880 1624
By - - -
Past service cost - Plan Amendmant | CY
! Py - - -
Curtallment cost/(credit) { CY |
A r = .
Setttement cost/{credit) l cY
Y = = a
Service Cast (8) [ Cy 31.81 | 28.90 | 1024
PY = = =
Nel interest on Net Defined Benefit P CY | = 1 -
Ligbility / (assets)( ) Py
Immediate recognition of (gains)/losses- | cY 1] - - -
other long term employee benafit ' Y -
plans(C)
Cost recognized I P& L (A+B+C) ey as1 | 2me0 [ 1024
Py - & T
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d) Sensitivity Analysis

(¥ in Lakhs as at 31.03.2023)

Assumption Change in Gratuity Leave PRMF
Assumption (Unfunded) (Unfunded) (Unfunded)
Discount rate +.50%, ] el 2724 9.04
=0.50% 33.56 30,72 .64
Satary growth rata +.50% 2276 0.7
0.50%: 30.84 2T
Withdrawal Bate | «10.00% [ 3206 2890 10.24
-10.00% 31.53 20.20 10,24
-.Medntal Inflatlon rata +0.50% 168
| | ~50% | | | 8.39 |
Sensitivity Analysis (2 in Lakhs as at 31.03.2022)
Assumption Change in Gratuity Leave PRMF
Assumption (Unfunded) (Unfunded) (Unfunded)
Discount rate +0,50% | = ;
[ { -0.50% | - -
Satary growth rale +0.50% -
-0.50%
Withdrawal Rate +10.00%: _
10,00% |
Medical Inflation rate +0,50%, [ - - -
-0.50% | - -

e) Actuarial Assumption:

Particulars

Gratuity

(Unfunded)

Leave
(Unfunded)

PRMF
(Unfunded)

Projected Unit Frojected Unit Projecied Unit
Credit (PUC) Credit (PUC) Credit (PUC)
Method Used ¢ Actuarial Method | Actuarial Method | Actuarial Method
| Y : : :
Diseount rate Cy T.50% T.50% 1.50%
salary growth Rate CY 7.50% 7.50% -
Ty : :
Withdrawal Rate CY 4.00% 4.00% 0.00%
Py
“Medical Infiation rate I Y 31.00%
PY - -
LAt
1989 —




Madhya Pradesh Metro Rall Corporation Limited Annual Report 2022-2023

f) Expected Benefit Payments (T in Lakhs)
Year of payment Gratuity Leave PRMF
(Unfunded) (Unfunded) (Unfunded)
1 March 31, 2024 1.09 127 7
1
? March 31, 2025 1.3 1.37 -
3 March 31, 2026 1.33 349
- March 31, 2027 1.37 1.26
5 March 31, 2028 275 2.73
6 March 31, 2029 to March 31, 2033 1637 8.89 a7s

10.

1.

As on 31.03.2023, the company do not have any funding arrangement and settle the
same on Pay-N-Co basis.

Disclosure in respect of ind AS-21- "The Effects of changes in Foreign Exchange
Rates."”

The amount of exchange differences (net) credited to the statement of Profit &
Loss amounting to ¥ 1.54 Lakh (P.Y. 2021-22 was Nil).

Disclosure in respect of Ind AS-24- “Related Party Disclosures”

a) Key Management Persons:
Shri Manish Singh, Managing Director (w.e.f. 12.11.2022)
Shri Nikunj Kumar Srivastava, The Then Managing Director (From 13.07.2022 to
11.11.2022) Smt. Chhavi Bhardwaj, The Then Managing Director (upto 13.07.2022)
Shri Ajay Sharma, Director Project (w.e.f. 23,03.2022)
Smt. Niti Kothari, Director Finance and CFO (w.e.f. 20.05.2022) Shri Sandeep lain,
Company Secretary
b) Disclosure of transactions of the company with Key Management Persons
( in Lakhs)
Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
Salaries & Allowances 10%.65 2135
Contilbutlon ta Provident Fund and other 19.43
Funds, Gratulty & Group Insurance 257
(ther Benefits 5
Total (included in Employees Cost) | 126.29 | 29.92
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In addition to the above remuneration:

The pravisions for contribution towards gratuity, leave encashment, post-retirement
medical benefits and terminal benefits as ascertained on actuarial valuation,

amounted to ¥ 5,50 Lakhs (P.Y. T NIL).

12. Disclosure in respect of Ind AS - 33- Earning Per Share

(¥ in Lakhs)

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
Prafit aftar taxstion as per Statement of Profit & 341,72 342,25
Loss
Weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding:
Basic 1,208,000,000 361,558,849
Diluted 1.249.986,575 361,558,849
Basic Earmings Per Share {1 ) 0.0283 0,002
{Face value of 2 10/- per share)
Diluted Earnings Per Share () 0.0373

[Face value of 710/~ per share)

0002

13. Disclosure in respect of Ind AS-37- "Provisions, Contingent liabilities and

Contingent Assets": Contingent Liabilities

Particulars

Claims against the company not acknowladge as
debt including forelgn currency claim towards:

As at 31.03.2023

(7 in Lakhs)

As at 371.03.2022

478100

478100 |
|
|

Weiiks
Rent AL A570
Total 4,826.70 4,826,70
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Contingent Assets: Nil

Disclosure in respect of Contingent liabilities:

Particulars {case description)

Party (1)

Amount of
dispute

Status as on
31.3.2023

Date when
case s
filed

Reaarding the owtershlp of 4 land
Parcel under Khisra Nodlay (0275
HAY & 1189 (0975 HA) an the right

side of Bharat Talkias to Bherked

Road

Regarding DPE Consultancy fee T 2731 lakhs Pending
for Bhopal and Indore Metro Rail Rohit MPMRCL [5021-240) o WP Before
projects Assaciatoy (Samardhan 12020 Han 'l
MSEFL, (20,08 2020) ISEFG,
MLimital) Mumbai
Apollo tower Rent, Indare Apolln MPMRCL F 4570 Lakh Az claimed
Framier
Regarding the dispute of land Dstrict Mot Fending bafore
Under Khasra Mo. 9201, 938, 239 & | Bhopal Glue Collector asgertainable | FR032022 | Han' ble High
vafi af Shopal City circle & Khasm | & Chemicals & Dthers Court, fabalpur
Mo, 37 & 36 of Goyindpura Clicle HLLel (MPMRECL as
Respondefit
M 3)
Regarding the ownershlp of o land Civil Suit | Pending I:IE.‘fﬂrf;';
Parcel under ithasra No, 208 (30,23 Aukhaf-e o, M.P. State
hcrey Baah Makwara Shariif, shathi, MPMRCL BAT2021 | Wagf Tribunat
Bhopal

(oa112001)

Clvl
Sult Mo,
A-THf202
(oa.1.2021)

# Net payable as on 21.03.23 as per books for M/S Rohit Association cities and Rail Pvt.
Ltd.. DPR cansultant is ¢ 239.52 lakhs.




Madhya Pradesh Metro Rall Corporation Limited Annual Report 2022-2023

14. Disclosures in respect of Ind AS 107- "Financial Instruments: Disclosures”
14.1 Financial Instruments

(i} Financial Instruments by Categories

The carrying values of financial instruments by categories are as follows:

(¥ in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2022
Amortised Cost Amortised Cost

Financial Assets
Other Financial Assets (Refer Note §) 2.193.56 52496
Bank balance Other than Cash and cash |
equlvalents (Refer MNate 10) &0,000.00 -
Cash & Cash equivalents (Refer Note 9) 11,562.97 ' 12,676.36
Total 74,356.53 112,601.32
Financial Liabilities
Borrawings (Refer Note 13) 141,584.96 £8,109.00
Other Finaincial Liabilities (Refer Note 14) 3146369 10,493, 04
Total 173,048.65 78,602.04

(i) Fair value Hierarchy

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value in the statement of financial
position are categorized inta three levels of a fair value hierarchy. The three levels
are defined based on the observation of significant inputs te the measurement as
follows :

Level 1- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical financialinstruments
that the entity can access at the measurement date.

Level 2- The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market
is determined using valuation techniques which maximize the use of relevant
observable market input and minimize use of unobservable inputs.

Level 3 - || one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market
input, the instrument is categorized in level 3 of fair value hierarchy.

208 -
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(iif) Financial Assets/Liabilities measured at amortized cost for which Fair Values
are disclosed:

(T in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2022

Carrying value FairValue Carrying Value  Fair Value

_Fr'ng_m l;i?' Assets | { |
Other Finsncial Assets (Refer Note 5) | Levil 2 2,793.56 2.793.56 524,965 524.96

Total _ _ 2,793.56 2,793.56 | 524.96 524.26

Financial Liabilities

Other financial liabilities (Refer Note | Leyel 2 346369 31.463.69 10,493.04 10,493.04

14)

Total 31,463.69 31,463.69 10,493.04 10,493.04

(iv) Valuation techniques and process used to determine fair values

a) The carrying value of financial assets and liabilities with maturities less than
12 months are considered to be representative of their fair value.

Fair value of other financial assets and liabilities carried at amortized cost s
determined by discounting of cash flows using a

b) discount rate which is defined as per Accounting Policy No: 2.14.
14.2 Financial Risk Management
I. Financial risk factors

The Company is exposed to various risks in relation to financial instruments. The
company’s financial assets and liabilities by category are summarized at nate no.
14.1 (i), The main types of risks are market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
company's risk management focuses on actively securing the Company's short to
medium term cash flows by minimizing the exposure to volatile financial markets.
The most significant financial risks to which the company is exposed are described
below.

(A) Market risk
The Company has foreign exchange risk as the Market risk. The company have
interest rate risk since EIB loan aggrement bears Variable rate of the interest.
The company does not have price risk since:.company is not having any derivative
financial asset.
The exchange fluctuation risk is due te import of property, plant and equipment

from outside |ndia. The company does not have any hedging instruments to cover
the foreign exchange risk.

Il
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The following table analyses foreign currency risk from financial instruments:
(7 in Lakhs as at 31.03,2023)

Particulars Euro uso Other currency Total

Cash and cash equivalent _ . = i

Trade Receivables

-Ether Férlanci;l fssels
Trade Payables
Dther Financial Liabilities . 6.0 . 1.01 . - 6711
Net Assetsf{'LiahilitIes} | 66.10 - 1.01 0 67,11

* Exchange rate applied ¥ 82.2368/USD and ¥ 88.9556/Euro
Sensitivity Analysis

Increase or Decrease of 1% in the respective forelan currencies compared to the
functional currency of the company would impact profit before tax by 7 0.67 lakhs ,

(% in Lakhs as at 31.03.2022)
Particulars Euro uso Other currency Total

Cash and cash equivalent - | - ; _

Trade Racelvables

Other Financial Assets - - 7 i

Trade Fayables

Other Firiancial Liabilities = =1 5 =il

Net Assets/(Liabllities) 0 0 0 0
(B) Credit Risk

Credit risk refers to the risk of default on its obligation by the counterparty
resulting in a financial loss. The company is exposed to this risk for various financial
instruments, for example by security deposits tc. The maximum exposure to the
credit risk at the reporting date is primarily from carrying amount of following
types of financial assets:

- Cash and cash equivalents
- lLoans
- Other financial assets measured at amortized cost
(i) Credit Risk Management
Cash and cash equivalent
Credit risk related to cash and cash equivalents is managed by placing funds in

= -
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schedule commercial banks which are subject to the regulatory oversight of the
Reserve Bank of India and these banking relationships are reviewed on an ongoing
basis.

Other financial assets:

Other iinancial asset which includes loans and advances are measured at amortized
cost.

(i) Expected Credit Losses
Other Financial Assets measured at Amortized cost:

Credit risk related to these other financial assets is managed by monitoring the
recoverability of such amounts continuously, while at the same time internal
control system in place ensures that the amounts are within defined limits. There
are no impairment provisions as at each reporting date against these financial
assets, We consider all the above financial assets as at the reporting dates to be
of good credit quality.

(c) Liquidity Risk
Liquidity requirements of the company are monitored on the basls of monthly and
yearly projections. The company's principal sources of liguidity are cash and cash

equivalents, Long term loan from EIB through PTA, Interest free subordinate debt,
Share capital and Grant.

We manage our liquidity needs by continuously monitoring cash inflows and by
maintaining adequate cash and cash equivalents. Net cash requirements are
compared to available cash in order to determine any shortfalls.

Short term liquidity requirements consist mainly of sundry creditors, expense
payable, employee dues and retention & deposits arising during the normal course
of business as of each reporting date. We maintain a sufficient balance in cash and
cash equivalents to meet our short term liquldity requirements.

We assess long term liquidity requirements on a periodical basis and manage
them through internal accruals. Our non-current liabilities include Loans, Interast
free subordinate debt and liabilities for Employee benefits.

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of non-
derivative financial liabilities. The table have been drawn up based on the cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the company may
be required to pay. The table includes both principal & interest cash flows.

=1
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(2 in Lakbs as at 31.03.2023)

Particulars Less than 6 & Months to More than 1 year Morethan  More than s Total
months 1 year to 3 years 3 year to 5 yoars

VEars

Barrow|ng (Refer
‘ Nota 13) 1415E4.96 14%,584.94
Other firancial 31,463.68
liabllities {Refer Nota|  24.860,01 | 4333.82 | 196323 306.62
| Grand Total 24,860,01 | 433382 | 196323 | 30662 141,584.96 | 173,048.64

(z in Lakhs as at 31.03.2022)

Particulars Less than 6 6 Months to More than 1 year Morethan  More than & Total
months 1 year o 3 years Iyearto 5 years
Years
Borrowings | |
(Refer Mote 13) | 68.109.00 68,709,00
Other firancial
liah|lities (Refer Mate | 640486 106,80 3,674,948 0862 3 10,493,046
14)
Grand Total | 6,404.66 106.80 3.674.98 J 306.62 68,109.00 TH,602.06

15. Disclosure in respect of IND AS - 36 - "Impairment of Assets"
The management has assessed impairment of assets and found no impairment
during the year 2022-23 (PY 2021-22 NIl).
16. Additional Regulatory Information

i, Title deeds of Immovable Properties not held in name of the Company - Refer note
17

i Detalls of Benami Property held - NIL (P.Y - NIL)
i. Whether company is declared as willful defaulter = NIL (P.Y - NIL)
w.  Transaction with struck off companies - NIL (P.Y = NIL)

v. Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC) pending-
MIL (F‘.‘\" = NIL)

v.. Conduit lending/investment/Conduit Borrowings = NIL (P.Y = NIL)

vil, Undisclosed income under Income Tax Act = NIL (P.Y - NIL)

vill. Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency transactions — NIL (P.Y - NIL)

lx. Valuation by registered Valuer of fair value of Investment Property - Nil (P.Y — NIL)

x. Valuation by registered Valuer of Property, Plant & Equipment (incld RoU) - NIL
(P.Y - NIL)

«. Valuation by registered Valuer of Intangible Assets - NIL (P.Y - NIL)

«i,  Loans [/ Advances to promoters [ directors / KMPs and the related parties - NIl (P.Y
-~ NIL)
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xill. Borrowings from banks or Financial institutions against Current Assets - NIL (P.Y

- NIL)
Wi,
i

£,

Compliance with number of layers of Companies - NIL (P.Y - NIL)
Compliance with approved scheme(s) of Arrangement ~NIL (P.¥ - NIL)

Utilization of Borrowed funds and share premium - NIL (P.Y - NIL)

xvii. Section 42 & 62 of Companies Act 2013 are not applicable. (As per OM of MCA)
17. Title deeds of Immovable Properties not held in name of the Company Freehold

Land:

Gross
carrying
value
(Amount
in#)

Description of Property

Bhaopal

Area Title dead
held in the

name of

Whether title
deed holderis a
promoter; director
or relative of
promoter [ director
or employee of
promaoter [ director

Property

held since

Which
date

Remarks

Matrg R3il Depot Land at
Subhash Naga 1

IT.A95 Ha|

Additional land for Depat at

9122021

subliash pagar 1 3.51 Ha 0082027
Barkatullah University (8U) | 1 .57 Ha |
land GoMP (MP 2022
Lirkan
AlIMS {and j ] 0.0176 Ha| Development | 23112022
| = ,
Land In front of Sargam & nipusing '.
. T as = ¥ - ¥ Arges
Cinema at MP nagar zore-2 1 0,136 4z | VERATEMENT) FIGaES 23.41.2022 |Procedundl
i Doday,
Land near REI at MP ragar 1 Hn.N202
tone-1 far K\ Metto <tation 0.405 Ha
. i = |
Land near DIG Bunolow Melrp)
Station 1 0,45 Ha #1.11.2023
Indore
Depot Land at Gandhinagar 38202490 | 3017 Ha 072021
Gandhinagar Curve [and THA9544 06122022
0.0% Ha
Ty T ! - —{  GoMP (MP L ——
D& land at MR-10 scheme | 1 0363 Ha 19.08.2021
I Urban
L1
RS [— ) I Davelapmen Pronmiater Procedural |
IME land of AICTSL bus depot | & Housing Delay.
AEIr kKhajrans 90000071 | 025 Ha | papartment ) 2172021
; 1 {
Gancdhi nagar soclety land at
depot ] 21 Ha 23,12 2022
=
- 208 |

{
|

I
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18. Disclosure in respect of GoMP & Gol MoU:

Memorandum of understanding between Government of India (Gol), Government of
Madhya Pradesh (GoMP) and Madhya Pradesh Metro Rail Carporation Ltd. (MPMRCL)
for Bhopal Metro Rail project and Indore Metro Rail project were executed on 19 Aug
201%. Pursuant to which, during F.Y 2022-23 funds amounting to T 49999.96 Lakhs
were received from CoMP and ¥ 47754.00 Lakhs were received from Gol (including
PTA) for Bhopal and Indore Metro Rail projects. Out of that share application money
pending allotment from Gol is ¥ 24278.00 Lakhs.

19. The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared and presented as per the requirements
of ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash flows" under the indirect method.

20. For considering the events occurring after the end of a reporting period but before
the financial statements are approved, the cut off date has been taken as 15.05.2023.
Further, on 03.07.2023 the Annual Financial statement for the F.Y. 2022-23 has been
approved for issue by the Board of Directors of the company.

21. Pursuant to Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013, the CSR provisions are applicable
to MPMRCL but the average net profits during the three immediately preceding
financial years is negative, the company is not required to spend any amount
mandatorily on CSR.

22. Figures have been rounded off to nearest Lakh.

23. Previous year figures have been regrouped, rearranged, reclassified wherever
necessary, to malke them comparable with current year’s presentation.

24, Disclosure in respect of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS- 8) "Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors"

Changes in Accounting Policy, Changes in Accounting Estimate and Error:
Property, Plant and Equipment

The Company has adopted policy (Significant Accounting Policy No. 2.3) for
depreciation on Maobile Handset provided to employees. Depreciation on Mobile
set is T 2 Lakhs for current year.

The Company has adopted policy (Significant Accounting Policy No. 2.3) for Deposit
Woark/Contracts: "Deposit Work/Contracts are capitalized on completion on the basis
of staternent of accounts received from executing agencies and in its absence on
the basis of technical assessment of the work executed.”

Land

The company has adopted accounting policy (Significant Accounting Policy No.
2.5) for recognizing Land. This has resulted a increase of land and SD by ¥ 4 for
Previous year and ¥ 8 for Current year as nominal value. Cost of rehabilitation
and resettlement is added (o the cost of land as per policy. Accordignly, there is a
increase of land by ¥ 472.02 lakhs and 7 12.40 lakhs for Previous year & Current year
respectively.

A
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Capital Work in Progress

The company has adopted accounting policy (Significant Accounting Policy No.
2.6) for CWIP and As per Indian Accounting standard (Ind AS) 23"Borrowing Cost”,
Income pertaining to construction period towards Pass through Assistance (PTA)
against interest bearing loan is adjusted under CWIP. Interest Income of ¥ 1205.88
lakhs (P.Y. ¥ 344.03 Lakhs) has been transferred to expense during constuction
under the CWIP head.

Foreign Exchange Transactions

The company has adopted accounting policy (Significant Accounting Policy No.
2.10) for recognizing Foreign Exchange Transactions.

This has resulted in increasing the profit due to Forex difference during the year by
¥ 1.55 lakhs.

Employee Benefits: Post-Employment Benefits (Defined Benefit Plan)

The Company has adopted policy (Significant Accounting Policy na. 212) for
recognising Past-Employment Benefits. Provision of ¥ 70.95 Lakhs is made on the
basis of actuarial valuation during the year.

Accounting for Taxes on Income

The Company has mentioned in policy (Significant Accounting Policy No. 2.13) about
Income Tax . Accrodignly, provision of Income Tax for T 456.93 Lakh (P/Y 7 51.03 Lakh)
is created affecting the profit and transferred to Current Tax Asset (Net) by using
new regime of taxation.

Effective Interest Rate

The Company has mentioned in policy (Significant Accounting Policy No. 2.14)
about Effective Interest Rate (EIR) for fair valuation of financial assets or financial
Liabilities. Fair valuation is done in only cases where period is ascertainable.
Accordingly security deposit is fair valued. Security deposit as on end of current
year and previous year is ¥ 40.21 lakhs and ¥ 37.58 lakhs respectively.

Lease

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116, where the right of use assets is equal to
the lease liability. The company has applied the standard to its leases, pursuant
to which recognition of leasing arrangement as Right-of-use asset from the date
of lease agreement. Accordingly, previous period information has been restated.
This has resulted in initial recognising a right-of-use assetl of Rs. 917.52 lakhs and
lease liability of Rs. 917.52 lakhs in terms of Accouting Policy No, 2.17. Amortisation
expenses for the right-of-use asset and finance cost on lease liability is recognised
in the statement of profit and loss.
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Prior Period

The company has adopted accounting policy (Significant Accounting Policy No,
2.20) for recognizing Prior Periad. "Income { Expenditure relating to a prior period
which does not exceed 0.50% of the total turnover / gross income are treated as
Income [/ expenditure of current year",

Grant

The Company has adopted policy (Significant Accounting Policy No. 2.21) for
Grants. "The grant relates to an expense item, it is recognized as income on a
systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed". The expenditure incurred during the year is shown in
other expenses & corresponding Income is shown by reducing the carrying value
of grants. Accordingly Rs. 662.64 Lakhs are recorded as expenditure and income in
current year and Rs. 217.24 Lakhs in previous year.

Deferred Tax

Deffered Tax asset / (Liability) was reinstated for the RoU assets, lease liability and
CWIP (Interest Income) resulting in increase of Net deferred tax asset by Rs. 91.91
Lakh in PY and the rate of Deferred tax was also corrected in PY, (earlier rate taken
was 26% which is corrected to 25.168%)

The following financial statement line items were affected by the change in
accounting policy, accounting estimate and accounting errors:

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2022 (F in Lakhs)
Particulars Restated Amountsin  Earlier Presented Reclassified /
Current Yeasr's Amount Regrouped / Restated
Amount
ASSETS : ' ]
-Hun-i:urrent Assets |
Property, Plant & Equipment 1.464.23'; 147.59! 1,316.64
Capital Work in Progress 70,020.08| 70,3741 -344.03
Financial Assets |
(v} Other Financial Assets 37.58| o4 56 -16.98|
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) | 1144 19.53) 9191
Gther Non current Assets 15,308.15| 13,2410 2,084.05]
Current Assets i i | |
(i) Cash and cash ' 12,076.36| 112,563.74 45738|
equivalents _ _
(v) Laans | 2.502.37 -1*,.542.3?{
o
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Particulars Restated Amounts in  Earlier Presented Reclassified /
Current Year's Amount Regrouped / Restated
Amount
i) Other Financial Assets | a67.38, -3 -ﬂﬁ.]ﬂi
Current Tax Assets (Net) . 19.51 - 19.51?
Other Current Assets 'I'}.?“I: 5?22: -:‘.T.E‘IE
Equity ;
Othar Equity L -i‘lﬂ.ﬂ?. 83 35? ‘327.03
Liabilities ' ‘

Mon-current Liabilities :

-Iii'uil Other financial Liabilit.ies.:: a,-;rs_r..ag': gimju{ ?n"ms";
Current Liabilities i -
(i) Other financial liabltities | ST i e
Provislaris ' 0.00 5,931.39 5,931.39|

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2022
(¥ in Lakhs)

Particulars Restated Amounts Earlier Reclassified / Regrouped
in Current Year's Presented [/ Restated Amount
Amount

Other Income 1,766,004 1,891.65 -125.47
Other experises B32.52 623,74 138.78
Finance casts 30.62 | 0.00 30.62
Prepreciation and 129.52 E&.672 72.80
amartization expense
Frofit before Tax 5,10 | 65301 =467
CUrrent tax 5103 000 51.03
Deferred tax 9E.18 6.77 =918

Profit after Tax 362.25 AHS. 28 =177.03

Earnings per equity share .
(1) Basic oo 0.2 -0.09

(2} Dilutad 0:10 | 0.9 -8.09

-
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Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended 31st March, 2022

Particulars

Restated Amounts in

(¥ in Lakhs)

Reclassified /
Regrouped /
Restated Amount

Earlier Presented

Current Years Amount

Mel Impact

Cash Flow from Operating Activities 27.070.85 40,375.46 13,307.52
Cash Flow from Investing Activities -52,582.79 -38. 86779 -13,715.00
Cash Flow from Financing Activities J46,657.17 146, 777.00 -79.89
Mel Increase/ (decraase) in Cash & G7.043.37 B7530.74 48737
Cazh Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the 4503299 4503299
beginning of the perind
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end 112,076,386 11256374 -487.38
of the period f !

CLoo oo 0.00

As per our report of even date

For A K B Jain & Co. Chartered
FR No. 003904C

sd/-
Pawan Dharamdasani

Partner
M. No. 430739

Date :10.07.2023
Place : Bhopal

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-

(Sandeep Jain) (Niti Kothari)
Company Secretary  Director (Finance) & CFO
FCS: 7847 DIN: 09608369

Sd/- Sd/-
(Neeraj Mandloi) (Manish Singh)
Director Managing Director
DIN: 02037213 DIN: 05277748
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